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          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Good morning,

          3  everyone. Welcome to today's Hearing for Civil

          4  Service and Labor.  My name is Joe Addabbo.  I have

          5  the privilege of serving as Chair of this Committee,

          6  and I welcome you all here.  Good morning.  To those

          7  on the other side of the posters, my apologies.

          8  Good to see you all here and, again, welcome.

          9                 We are going to do today's Committee

         10  Hearing actually in two parts.  The first part, the

         11  Committee will examine the labor perspective of the

         12  Taxi and Limousine enforcement procedures, and

         13  second, the Committee will discuss Resolution 738,

         14  which supports federal legislation establishing a

         15  grant program for individuals suffering negative

         16  health effects as a result of the September 11

         17  attacks.

         18                 At this point I want to thank my

         19  Committee staff who has worked on both of these

         20  parts of the Hearing.  We have to my right here,

         21  Legal Counsel Harold Gates, to my left here, Legal

         22  Counsel Elisa Chae, Joan Povolny, our Policy

         23  Analyst, Jeff Gottlieb, my Legislative Aide.  I will

         24  introduce Council Members as they come forward and

         25  come into the room.  My apologies on their behalf.
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          2  We have multiple hearings going on today, so since

          3  we have not legalized cloning just yet, we have to

          4  deal with the scheduling.

          5                 For the first part of today's

          6  Hearing, the Civil Service and Labor Committee will

          7  look at the labor perspective of the Taxi and

          8  Limousine enforcement procedures.  In 2005, the TLC

          9  ordered its enforcement inspectors to use

         10  environmentally friendly hybrid electric cars

         11  equipped with yellow flashing lights but no sirens.

         12  Enforcement inspectors are empowered to make TLC

         13  vehicle stops that can turn potentially violent.

         14  Today this Committee expects to hear testimony

         15  regarding the new hybrid vehicles and how they

         16  affect TLC enforcement, and I want to thank all

         17  those who are going to be testifying today.

         18                 To start us off we will have our

         19  first panel, Mr. Gregory Floyd, President of

         20  Teamsters Local 237.  Mr. Floyd, please come

         21  forward.  Good morning, Mr. Floyd.

         22                 MR. FLOYD:  Good morning.  Thank you.

         23    I want to personally thank the Committee for

         24  holding this important Hearing, and I just want to

         25  apologize because the issue of yellow lights for
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          2  peace officers should not be one that's brought

          3  before this Council.  I'm sorry we couldn't work

          4  this out two years ago with the agency, but we

          5  couldn't get anywhere with them.

          6                 Good morning.  My name is Gregory

          7  Floyd.  I am the President of Teamsters Local 237.

          8  My union is proud to represent taxi and limousine

          9  inspectors who enforce TLC regulations regarding

         10  for- hire and medallion car services throughout the

         11  City.

         12                 Local 237 commends Chairman Addabbo

         13  and the Committee for holding this Hearing regarding

         14  the change in equipment that has recently been

         15  installed in our inspectors' vehicles.  There is no

         16  denying the importance of taxi and limousine

         17  inspectors and their work.  They are considered

         18  peace officers and have special patrolman status as

         19  found in the New York State Criminal Procedure Law

         20  2.10, line 27.  They perform enforcement,

         21  investigatory and inspectional duties of vehicles

         22  and drivers that assure the safety for both drivers

         23  and their passengers.  To perform these duties

         24  effectively, these inspectors are regularly called

         25  upon to perform car stops of taxi and other for-
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          2  hire vehicles.

          3                 Car stops are among the most

          4  dangerous activities performed by law enforcement

          5  officials.  In 2004, TLC inspectors conducted a

          6  total of 59,074 car stops resulting in the issuance

          7  of 47,972 summonses.  Yet, despite the danger, the

          8  Taxi and Limousine Commission has decided to remove

          9  the emergency roof package of red lights and sirens,

         10  which signifies danger and official action, and are

         11  instead now fitting these enforcement vehicles with

         12  amber lights and a PA system.  Attached to my

         13  testimony please find the section of the Vehicle and

         14  Traffic Law that describes what each colored light

         15  on a vehicle is to indicate.  Under the section

         16  describing amber lights it says the following:

         17                 Amber lights may be affixed to a

         18  hazard vehicle.  A hazard vehicle is defined in 117-

         19  a as a vehicle used in the construction, maintenance

         20  and repair of its facilities, every vehicle

         21  specially equipped or designed for the towing or

         22  pushing of disabled vehicles, every vehicle engaged

         23  in highway maintenance, and vehicles used by rural

         24  letter carriers.  In any city having a population of

         25  one million or more, one amber light may be affixed
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          2  to any vehicle operated by a volunteer member of a

          3  civilian or crime patrol.

          4                 As you can see, the use of amber

          5  lights does not coincide whatsoever with the duties

          6  that the Taxi and Limousine inspectors are

          7  performing.  We do not operate construction or

          8  maintenance vehicles, and we do not tow or push

          9  disabled vehicles. These are situations where the

         10  use of amber lights is inappropriate.  We are law

         11  enforcement personnel and are pulling over vehicles

         12  that may be involved in violation of law, and this

         13  new package greatly threatens the safety of our

         14  field officers.               Furthermore, we

         15  believe that if you ask the average motorist their

         16  understanding of what amber lights indicate, they

         17  would not recognize it as an indication to pull

         18  over.  In fact, according to the Vehicle Traffic Law

         19  Section 1141, motorists are required to yield right-

         20  of- way only to approaching authorized emergency

         21  vehicles equipped with red lights and audible

         22  signals and sirens.  Therefore, we ask for your

         23  assistance before one or more of our members are

         24  injured due to inability to safely execute car

         25  stops.
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          2                 The use of red lights and sirens

          3  packages is further justified from a legal

          4  standpoint.  The New York State Vehicle and Traffic

          5  Law clearly indicates that vehicles owned and

          6  operated by the law enforcement unit of a public or

          7  private corporation shall be considered a police

          8  vehicle.  Because the Taxi and Limousine has an

          9  enforcement unit, the vehicles used by this unit

         10  should thus be considered police vehicles.  The

         11  Vehicle and Traffic Law also defines police vehicles

         12  as emergency vehicles and, as such, they are

         13  entitled to the light and siren package.  The

         14  Vehicle and Traffic Law properly envisions

         15  situations requiring operations that need to use

         16  emergency indicators such as lights and sirens that

         17  the union seeks to restore.

         18                 The necessity of red lights and

         19  sirens to signify the official status of our

         20  vehicles is further justified by the decision of

         21  other New York City and state agencies to place red

         22  light siren packages on their enforcement and

         23  emergency vehicles. Some of those agencies include

         24  the Department of Environmental Protection, MTA

         25  Police, New York City Parks Department and NYPD
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          2  School Safety.  While their vehicles possess red

          3  lights and sirens, you may note that unlike the Taxi

          4  and Limousine inspectors, some of these agencies'

          5  enforcement activities do not involve apprehension

          6  of wrongdoers and the associated need to announce

          7  law enforcement status.  This makes it particularly

          8  difficult to understand why our members' vehicles

          9  were stripped of these lights and siren packages.

         10  May I also add that routinely they don't do car

         11  stops.

         12                 The display boards I have brought

         13  today clearly indicate our problem.  The display

         14  boards are to my right, your left.  In fact, the

         15  NYPD traffic enforcement agents are not peace

         16  officers, but yet they are given the red light and

         17  siren package.

         18                 The photo display shows red light and

         19  siren package on three vehicles that do not perform

         20  car stops.  These new vehicles clearly do not

         21  project the seriousness of a potential car stop

         22  situation.

         23                 Local 237 members who serve as Taxi

         24  and Limousine inspectors, believe the use of amber

         25  lights without the siren is dangerous.  These
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          2  dedicated public servants are uniformed law

          3  enforcement officers who are expected to enforce the

          4  law and regulations of the City of New York.  The

          5  safest application of their law enforcement duties

          6  require an emergency red light and siren package

          7  necessary to announce to both the public and the

          8  subject of enforcement that an official enforcement

          9  action is underway.

         10                 Amber lights without sirens signify

         11  caution.  Red lights and sirens signify danger and

         12  official action.  Please protect our workers by

         13  requiring the use of red lights and sirens for their

         14  vehicles.  Thank you for your opportunity to

         15  testify.  I will answer any questions if you have

         16  them.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

         18  much, Mr. Floyd.  I do have a couple of questions

         19  regarding your testimony. As we go through page one,

         20  you mentioned car stop.  What kind of vehicles are

         21  being pulled over by your members?

         22                 MR. FLOYD:  Our members are

         23  responsible for pulling over medallion cabs and for-

         24  hire vehicles.  Now that would also include anyone

         25  posing as a for- hire vehicle or a cab that doesn't
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          2  have a license to do so.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And that's

          4  where possibly you may have a potentially violent

          5  incident at that point possibly?

          6                 MR. FLOYD:  Correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And then at

          8  this point let me just again thank your members and

          9  inspectors for the work that they do do in the City.

         10    We appreciate their efforts as well.

         11                 MR. FLOYD:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Now you had

         13  mentioned in 2004, 15,000 or so car stops also on

         14  page one.  That's in 2004.  Do we know if we have

         15  updated information 2005, 2006?

         16                 MR. FLOYD:  That I'm unaware of if we

         17  have.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.

         19  Subsequent to this Hearing, after this Hearing, we

         20  will basically see if we can get those updated

         21  numbers just to see if the car stops have increased

         22  or decreased.   When you say 47,000 summonses, in

         23  turn, that means revenue for the City?

         24                 MR. FLOYD:  Correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  That's
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          2  always a good thing.  You're also saying that with

          3  the amber lights and with the no siren that the City

          4  or the Administration may be in violation of state

          5  law, correct?

          6                 MR. FLOYD:  Correct, that's what

          7  we're saying. That's our case.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  When did the

          9  new package come along, the amber lights and the no

         10  sirens?  When did those cars actually hit the road?

         11                 MR. FLOYD:  Those cars actually hit

         12  the road, I would say late 2005, early 2006.

         13  However, our inspectors are still using the former

         14  car, which you see has a red light package.  So what

         15  we're asking for, we're not asking for something

         16  different, we're asking for what we already had

         17  since the creation of the Taxi and Limousine

         18  inspectors title.  This is going on maybe 35, 40

         19  years we've had this package.  Now for the last two

         20  years, for whatever reason, somebody comes along,

         21  and they decide that they're going to change what

         22  has been done in the past.  However, I would say if

         23  New York City and New York State goes to a yellow

         24  light package, that wouldn't be inappropriate

         25  because all citizens would be aware that yellow now
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          2  means that you have to pull over.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Right.

          4                 MR. FLOYD:  I'm just saying that it's

          5  baffling to us why this change would come about in

          6  the middle of an operation in New York City where

          7  everyone clearly knows somebody in law enforcement

          8  is pulling me over.  I have to stop.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Well, let's

         10  talk about that change for a second, Mr. Floyd.

         11  Again, consistency, I understand that issue as well.

         12    But as far as the change is concerned, were you or

         13  your members in discussions with the Administration

         14  regarding this change, or all of a sudden this

         15  change occurred without any kind of input?

         16                 MR. FLOYD:  Well, they notified us of

         17  the change. We expressed our opposition to it, and

         18  the Administration listened, and they went ahead

         19  with the change.  Now, we've been trying for the

         20  last I would say year and half almost two years to

         21  try to resolve this issue.  However, we do realize

         22  the situation is really getting dangerous.  When

         23  they first made the change, all of the new package

         24  vehicles were not being used in the streets, so I

         25  would say the change was minimal, but now they want
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          2  to use more of the new vehicles, which has the

          3  yellow lights on it, so the situation has become

          4  more dangerous.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  How many cars

          6  total in the fleet for your members and the

          7  inspectors?  How many cars total are in use at this

          8  point?

          9                 MR. FLOYD:  I'm not quite sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Roughly, do you

         11  have a rough number?

         12                 MR. FLOYD:  I don't have a rough

         13  number.  But I do have members that will be

         14  testifying.  Maybe they will have a rough number.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay, if any of

         16  the members, they're in the room, remind me that we

         17  need to talk about that. But are you saying also

         18  that of the total, just generally speaking, of the

         19  total amount of cars that your members use, there

         20  are some of them that are used in the hybrid and

         21  some of them still using the old cars?

         22                 MR. FLOYD:  Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And have there

         24  been any reported instances where your inspectors

         25  are using the new cars, the hybrid cars with the
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          2  amber and no siren, do you know of any situations

          3  yet that have been violent or misidentified and the

          4  inspectors were not identified as inspectors?  Do

          5  you know of any instances yet?

          6                 MR. FLOYD:  Fortunately right now I

          7  don't know of any.  That's as of today, and that's

          8  fortunate.  We're very fortunate.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  In the past,

         10  your members would use the siren quite often?

         11                 MR. FLOYD:  I wouldn't say quite

         12  often.  As needed.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Do you know of

         14  any past history of siren abuse by your members?

         15  Basically using the siren needlessly or anything

         16  like that?

         17                 MR. FLOYD:  No, we go over the

         18  disciplinary process, and our inspectors are very

         19  responsible.  For the most part, they only use the

         20  sirens when they need to.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  As far as you

         22  know, there's been no disciplinary actions regarding

         23  unwarranted siren use?

         24                 MR. FLOYD:  No.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I'm sure your
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          2  members have complained to you about the hybrid

          3  cars, the amber lights and the lack of sirens?

          4                 MR. FLOYD:  Yes, they have.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Do you know

          6  firsthand if the Administration is purchasing new

          7  hybrid cars?  Are they going to be purchasing more?

          8                 MR. FLOYD:  I'm not sure if they're

          9  going to purchase more.  I know they have a fleet

         10  that's out in Woodside now.  They have a fleet of

         11  these cars, and I know as the City has a capital

         12  improvements and capital spending, if they purchased

         13  cars two years ago, and these cars are fairly new, I

         14  wouldn't imagine that they wouldn't be purchasing

         15  new cars any time soon.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I had asked you

         17  if your members are complaining, and you said yes.

         18                 MR. FLOYD:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Do we know if

         20  anybody who has been pulled over the new hybrid

         21  cars, are they complaining?  Say for instance, a cab

         22  driver is pulled over, or a medallion car or for-

         23  hire, they're pulled over by one of these new cars.

         24  Do you know if they are complaining that they didn't

         25  know who was pulling them over were inspectors
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          2  because of the new package that you have? Do you

          3  know if the cab drivers or medallion people are

          4  complaining?

          5                 MR. FLOYD:  No, I don't know as of

          6  yet, but I would imagine that there would be a few

          7  people out there that would not understand who's

          8  pulling them over, and probably wouldn't stop, which

          9  would probably lead to further problems and maybe an

         10  arrest that was unnecessary because the person

         11  really didn't understand that this is the same

         12  person that was in the blue vehicle yesterday with

         13  red lights, they're in a white vehicle with yellow

         14  lights today.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  You know, we

         16  have to be mindful that obviously whenever there's

         17  any change, especially like this, there's going to

         18  be a slight learning curve for everyone, public

         19  included.  You know, a pedestrian walking across the

         20  street now sees this white car that the inspectors

         21  are using, there's going to be a little bit of a

         22  learning process.  But I do see your point regarding

         23  the amber lights and sirens to a lesser extent, and

         24  appreciate this chart here that lists the TLC

         25  inspectors as the only agency that does not have a
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          2  siren or a red flashing light in that industry of

          3  public safety or enforcement.

          4                 MR. FLOYD:  Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  So you're

          6  saying the TLC inspectors are the only ones that

          7  don't have this kind of package for that kind of

          8  role that they play for the City.

          9                 MR. FLOYD:  Right.  And I would say

         10  not that they do not have the package.  I would say

         11  no longer have the package because we had it in the

         12  past.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  You said

         14  traditionally they had.

         15                 MR. FLOYD:  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Lastly, Mr.

         17  Floyd, if you had your wishes, if you had the chance

         18  to tell the Administration what you actually would

         19  want to do going forward, what would it be? Would it

         20  be refitting the new cars with the red light and the

         21  siren?  Obviously, I don't see the Administration

         22  selling off these hybrid cars.  I think the cars are

         23  here to stay, but what would be your wish or your

         24  request of the Administration given the situation?

         25                 MR. FLOYD:  Well, I would say, what
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          2  wasn't mentioned with the hybrid cars is sometimes

          3  the inspectors have to make arrests.  And the hybrid

          4  cars are small.  They're not equipped with the

          5  equipment, which is a cage, and they don't have the

          6  room that you would have to transport someone that

          7  is arrested.  So there's another danger.  We were

          8  focusing on the lights, but if you ask me about the

          9  vehicles to say the hybrid vehicle, it's a smaller

         10  vehicle.  You really need a vehicle that you can

         11  transport persons because you never know when you

         12  have to arrest somebody.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And if I may,

         14  Mr. Floyd, the older or previous cars did have the

         15  cage in the back?

         16                 MR. FLOYD:  Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I can see they

         18  were bigger, but they were equipped with the cage

         19  and so on?

         20                 MR. FLOYD:  Equipped with the cage.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Let me again

         22  pose the question if you had your wish to request

         23  the Administration to do a change here going

         24  forward, what would be your request?

         25                 MR. FLOYD:  Well, my request would be
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          2  to at least have some vehicles that they could call

          3  off a patrol, that they could transport some

          4  prisoners or persons arrested, and also fit all the

          5  vehicles with the red lights and sirens and

          6  emergency package.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  So you're

          8  saying, hold on to some of the traditional vehicles

          9  for possibly calling as back up, so to speak?

         10                 MR. FLOYD:  Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  Mr.

         12  Floyd, I really appreciate your time and testimony,

         13  and I look forward to speaking to you about this

         14  issue subsequent to this Hearing.

         15                 MR. FLOYD:  Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

         17  much.  Our next panel is a panel of three.  We have

         18  Officer Marc Pagan, a TLC inspector, Officer Diana

         19  Rodriguez and Officer Bruce Stafford. Please step

         20  forward.  Thank you very much for being here.  Okay,

         21  now you're confusing me.  I called three names and

         22  four people appeared.  For the record, please state

         23  your name and please give your testimony.  Thank

         24  you.

         25                 CAPTAIN PAGAN:  I'm Captain Marcos
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          2  Pagan from the New York City Taxi and Limousine

          3  Commission.

          4                 LIEUTENANT BROWN:  I'm Lieutenant

          5  Tamika Brown, the Taxi and Limousine Commission.  I

          6  will be sitting in for Diane Rodriguez, who was

          7  unable to speak today.

          8                 MR. STAFFORD:  My name is Bruce

          9  Stafford.  I'm a New York City Taxi and Limousine

         10  inspector.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you all

         12  for being here. Please give your testimony.

         13                 CAPTAIN PAGAN:  Mr. Chairman, I'm

         14  here to talk about what we do, what the officers of

         15  the Taxi and Limousine do on a daily basis.  Our

         16  main function is car stops.  We patrol the streets

         17  of New York, all five boroughs, every community, and

         18  we enforce the rules and regulations and all laws

         19  governing for- hire vehicles in the City of New

         20  York.  That includes the VTL, the Vehicle and

         21  Traffic Law, Penal Law, and so on.

         22                 In the past, when we had the former

         23  vehicles that were properly equipped, when we went

         24  to pull over a vehicle, we would turn on our

         25  emergency lights, hit the siren once and over the PA
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          2  tell the vehicle to pull over, which the vehicle

          3  pulled over immediately.  Currently, with the new

          4  vehicles that are fitted with the amber lights, no

          5  siren, and just the PA, it takes about four to five

          6  blocks to pull someone over.  The lights go on, it's

          7  an amber light on the top.  The vehicles are

          8  different.  We're telling the vehicle in front of us

          9  to pull over, and most of the time what they do is

         10  they speed up to keep going because they just don't

         11  know who we are.  By the time they do pull over, the

         12  first question is, who are you?  These are people in

         13  full uniform, cars marked.  The thing that throws

         14  them off is the emergency equipment.  There is none.

         15  It's a warning light.  That's the problem we've been

         16  having since we've changed.

         17                 The old vehicles no longer have the

         18  sirens.  They were removed.  Out of every one of our

         19  vehicles, every vehicle was removed, and this

         20  includes the unmarked cars, which makes it even more

         21  difficult to pull over vehicles because it's just a

         22  regular car honking a horn telling a person to pull

         23  over.  These are the problems we've been having

         24  since the change of the lights and sirens.

         25                 LIEUTENANT BROWN:  Good morning.  To
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          2  reiterate on what the Captain is saying, I feel that

          3  there's a safety issue for officers that are trying

          4  to conduct car stops in these vehicles that do not

          5  even appear to be enforcement.

          6                 As all of us would know, I live in

          7  the City, and these cars, the hybrid cars, the small

          8  one here, I have never seen anyone in New York City

          9  who does car stops conduct a car stop in a car of

         10  such.  Those cars are for supervisors of City

         11  agencies who report to sites for whatever reason.

         12  That car is totally inappropriate.  The proximity

         13  between officers and perpetrators who we arrest on a

         14  regular basis, if someone checked the Taxi and

         15  Limousine records, you will see that the number of

         16  arrests are astronomical these days compared to the

         17  history of New York City Taxi and Limousine

         18  Commission.

         19                 I just feel like for the safety

         20  officers as well as the public that these vehicles

         21  need to be changed, as well as equipping them with

         22  the lights and sirens.  When you're trying to

         23  conduct a car stop in New York City streets, and

         24  you're beeping a horn at someone trying to tell them

         25  to pull over, if you were to say, yellow medallion,
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          2  pull over, you have maybe five people pull over

          3  because they don't know which one them you're

          4  referring to.            There has been history of

          5  other agencies abusing lights and sirens, but those

          6  were not enforcement personnel that were caught in a

          7  position of such.  A simple yell to let the person

          8  you're trying to pull over know that you're an

          9  enforcement officer would be a great deal because

         10  trying to beep a regular horn at them to get them to

         11  acknowledge you as enforcement is not going to work

         12  in New York.

         13                 I conduct car stops, and there has

         14  been several occasions that I have had to tell the

         15  central communications division to take the plate

         16  number down because the vehicle did not pull over

         17  because they were not aware of who we were.

         18                 As far as the SUV with the hybrid,

         19  those cars, although they're equipped from the back

         20  with what's considered a caution light because when

         21  you press the button, it turns yellow, those cars

         22  are very dangerous.  The people behind you do not

         23  even realize that you're conducting a car stop, and

         24  they will pull behind your car and start beeping at

         25  you because they're waiting for you to move because

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  they don't realize that you're in enforcement mode.

          3                 So I would like that you guys

          4  consider the sizing of our vehicles, as well as the

          5  lights and sirens.  Thank you.

          6                 MR. STAFFORD:  My name is Bruce

          7  Stafford.  I'm a Taxi and Limousine inspector.

          8  These are my supervisors.  I'm going to speak from

          9  an inspector's point of view.  The key words and

         10  phrases that I'm going to emphasize is patrol, car

         11  stops and safety.  I will also compare our specific

         12  duties versus those of NYPD and other enforcement

         13  agencies.

         14                 First, patrol.  We as New York City

         15  Taxi and Limousine inspectors patrol the five

         16  boroughs in New York City, as you just heard.  We

         17  patrol in different areas also, as you just heard.

         18  We ensure the proper licensing of drivers in

         19  vehicles while performing our duty.  NYPD, hospitals

         20  police, school safety, traffic, sheriff's

         21  department, bridge and tunnels, and so on perform

         22  similar duties.  The difference is they have larger

         23  vehicles, lights and sirens on their vehicles, and

         24  we do not.

         25                 We patrol in RNP's such as these and
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          2  now these which are not sufficient.  We patrol in

          3  unmarked RNP's.  We patrol in marked RNP's.  We do

          4  undercover work.  We do work in uniform, and being

          5  that we don't have lights and sirens, we are not

          6  recognized either way.

          7                 In car stops, we make more car stops

          8  than most law enforcement divisions in New York

          9  City.  We enforce criminal law, felony and

         10  misdemeanor, the New York State VTL laws, the laws

         11  of New York City Traffic Violations Bureau, the New

         12  York City Administrative Code and specific New York

         13  City Taxi and Limousine Commission laws and rules.

         14                 Car stops.  If you ask any police

         15  officer or state trooper what the most dangerous

         16  part of being an officer, they all will tell you

         17  conducting a car stop.  It's very dangerous, and you

         18  never know what you're going to get.  As my Captain

         19  mentioned, that is 90 percent of our duty is car

         20  stops, day in and day out.

         21                 Since our lights and sirens have been

         22  taken away, there's been many instances of car stops

         23  gone wrong.  Vehicles take off causing possibly an

         24  accident with another vehicle, running over

         25  pedestrians.  Another supervisor, about a month ago,
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          2  had his eyes gouged with a passenger in a yellow

          3  medallion.  I was there that day, and because I was

          4  riding in a Toyota Prius, with no lights and sirens,

          5  I couldn't get there to assist.  The person was

          6  fully arrested and charged with assault, and I guess

          7  is going to be going to trial right now.  But these

          8  are some of the things that's happening, and it's

          9  getting worse every day.

         10                 We stop licensed livery cars, yellow

         11  medallions, as you know, and regular vehicles that

         12  pose as a for- hire vehicle. Now in precincts such

         13  as, I'll give you an example, two of the worst, the

         14  67 in Brooklyn and the 47 in the Bronx.  These are

         15  the worst.  It's running rampant up there.  First,

         16  these guys don't respect us period.  But now,

         17  without lights and sirens, and the back up we need

         18  for, you know, if we need assistance, we can't get

         19  it, and our lives are in danger here.  We don't know

         20  if these guys have guns, knives.  It's ridiculous.

         21                 The safety portion I'm going to

         22  mention is that these cars, the Prius and the

         23  Escape, they're just not law enforcement friendly at

         24  all.  I would suggest a more proper and widely used

         25  marked and unmarked vehicle would be a Chevy Impala,

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  such as pictured here with traffic, Crown Victoria,

          3  such as the Sheriff's Department.  They have a lot

          4  of those.

          5                 Recently, I've noticed some other

          6  departments have Ford Expeditions and Ford

          7  Explorers, Dodge Durangos, even.  I've seen some of

          8  those.  MTA police officers drive Dodge Durangos.

          9  These are more law enforcement friendly vehicles.

         10                 The size of the vehicles, as far as

         11  inspectors are concerned, there are some inspectors

         12  that are tall and maybe a little wide, so they can't

         13  fit in these vehicles.  These vehicles are way too

         14  small.  They're not efficient enough to carry our

         15  equipment.  We have to carry a lot of equipment in

         16  the field.  In an arrest, also taxi drivers, there's

         17  a lot of taxi drivers that tend to be tall and big.

         18  These cars we can't transport them in these cars.

         19                 Now in my personal experience in

         20  operating these vehicles, because I make car stops

         21  every day, I've been in near accidents trying to

         22  pull over a car because the public does not

         23  recognize these vehicles as law enforcement

         24  vehicles.  They don't have sirens.  We have to beep

         25  a horn, as my lieutenant mentioned, and there's been
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          2  many instances where I've been, I'm sure maybe some

          3  other inspectors have been in traffic accidents

          4  trying to pull over a car.  The car I'm trying to

          5  pull over has been in an accident almost trying to

          6  stop and see who we are.

          7                 Also, another safety issue on this is

          8  the proximity. If we do have to arrest someone, the

          9  proximity between the person that's being arrested

         10  and the officer that's driving is way too close.  We

         11  never know if this person is going to go off and go

         12  crazy.  We've had instances of that too.  We've had

         13  some very unruly perpetrators.

         14                 I'll try to make it short here.

         15  These are a lot of the issues that's wrong with

         16  these cars.

         17                 I would just like to say in closing

         18  that we have police powers without the title.  We

         19  wear bullet proof vests to protect us.  Our uniforms

         20  are exact replicas of NYPD, TBTA, Port Authority,

         21  the MTA Police, and although we are not recognized

         22  as first responders or first responder agency, I

         23  would like you all to know that we have responded to

         24  issues critical to New York City throughout the

         25  years.  September 11th, TLC inspectors were there.
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          2  The blackout in 2003, TLC inspectors were there.  In

          3  2005, the Hurricane Katrina tragedy, the Office of

          4  Emergency Management needed TLC inspectors to

          5  transport evacuees around the City to hotels and

          6  wherever they needed to go.  The transit strike in

          7  2006, the blackout in 2006 with the Con Edison

          8  issue, we were there directing traffic and making

          9  sure fire vehicles did what they had to do and

         10  things like that.

         11                 So I would like to ask you as the

         12  Labor Council and City Council to help us where our

         13  own agency has failed and neglected us and grant us

         14  the proper larger vehicles that we need and some

         15  recognition that we deserve.  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

         17  much, and let me take this moment to thank all three

         18  of you as being representative of other inspectors,

         19  but thank you for your work that you do in the City.

         20    We appreciate your time here today and the work

         21  that you do.

         22                 Let me just acknowledge some of my

         23  colleagues who have joined us today.  Member of the

         24  Committee, Council Member Melissa Mark- Viverito,

         25  Council Member, thank you.  Council Member Gale
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          2  Brewer, Council Member, thank you very much for

          3  being here.

          4                 I have a couple of questions before I

          5  get to possible questions from my colleagues.  You

          6  had mentioned, Captain Pagan, you had mentioned

          7  obviously not many people know when you pull them

          8  over that it's you at this point.  I had mentioned

          9  earlier to Mr. Floyd that there may be a slight

         10  learning curve here, so I guess bear with everyone

         11  as we go through these new vehicles.  Again, I just

         12  want to put that issue aside because we do have

         13  other more important issues.  If I just may go down

         14  the line. How many years on the job do you have?

         15                 CAPTAIN PAGAN:  I have 20 years.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  20.

         17                 LIEUTENANT BROWN:  I have 10.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.

         19                 MR. STAFFORD:  Three years.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay, you're

         21  getting there. I think, Tamika, you had mentioned

         22  your safety as well as safety of others.

         23                 LIEUTENANT BROWN:  Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  A question for

         25  all three of you, do you feel that this new vehicle,
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          2  the amber lights, the lack of sirens has put not

          3  only yourself, and please answer that question,

          4  yourself at risk, but also maybe the risk of others

          5  against Tamika's point that others may not be aware

          6  of the job that you're doing?  So, again, the car

          7  put you at risk and maybe the risk of others?

          8                 LIEUTENANT BROWN:  Yes, sir.  It

          9  would put myself as well as the public at risk.

         10  When you have so many instances where people are

         11  posing as someone else in the enforcement division,

         12  and when you're trying to stop a car, and you're

         13  really an officer, and you're trying to stop someone

         14  by beeping a horn, they're not going to acknowledge

         15  you.  Sometimes there are instances where they see

         16  lights and sirens, and they're afraid to pull over

         17  because so many people are fraudulent and pretending

         18  to be officers.  But to try to stop them in a car

         19  that's not recognized as an enforcement car, and

         20  then turn around and don't have the siren to

         21  acknowledge enforcement mode is crippling as well.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Anyone else

         23  want to join in on that?

         24                 CAPTAIN PAGAN:  Well, the other

         25  aspect on it is when we do stop someone and they
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          2  become violent and the officers call for back up.

          3  It's hard to respond to a scene where officers are

          4  being assaulted.  Like the officer stated in his

          5  testimony, we had an officer's eyes being gouged by

          6  an emotionally disturbed passenger.  This was not

          7  the driver.  This was the passenger of the vehicle.

          8  He could not properly respond because he was in one

          9  of the Prius' that is equipped with an amber light,

         10  no sirens, just honking the horn, and he was

         11  probably trying over the PA, move to the right, move

         12  to the right, and, of course, we're in New York City

         13  when people really don't listen and don't care.

         14  They just want to get to where they're going, and

         15  one of our guys got seriously hurt by having his

         16  eyes gouged, had to be rushed to the hospital.  This

         17  perpetrator is still in jail.  He was an emotionally

         18  disturbed person, and we couldn't get to him fast

         19  enough.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  That's some of

         21  the questions I had asked earlier regarding specific

         22  instances since the change, and I appreciate that

         23  because it does put into perspective what you deal

         24  with possibly on a day- to- day basis with the new

         25  car.
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          2                 Do you find that happens often where,

          3  again with the new cars that you're having a problem

          4  responding either as back up, or having a problem

          5  pulling someone over, it has increased with the new

          6  car?

          7                 CAPTAIN PAGAN:  Yes, it makes it very

          8  difficult to respond.  Nobody gets out of our way.

          9  It's like having Con Edison behind you and they have

         10  an amber light.  Nobody's going to move out of the

         11  way for Con Edison, so they just don't know.  People

         12  don't know.  You could put 40,000 amber lights,

         13  they're not going to move.  You put the red lights

         14  and the sirens, you'll get some action.

         15                 LIEUTENANT BROWN:  And may I also

         16  explain, although NYPD does a great job with

         17  protecting the City, when TLC has incidents, we're

         18  on our own channel.  We have our own communications

         19  line, so although we're not acknowledged in the City

         20  as first responders and emergency service, we're our

         21  own first responders and what we do is dangerous.  I

         22  don't think people understand that.  When they hear

         23  inspector, they think that we all stand under a

         24  medallion and inspect it.  Patrolling is very

         25  dangerous, and sometimes we get to one another
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          2  before PD can get to us.

          3                 We've been in instances, our guys

          4  have been on a scene to give people mouth to mouth

          5  resuscitation.  We've been in areas where people

          6  have been attacked, pocketbooks snatched.  TLC

          7  officers would be there to assist because you never

          8  know what your job function will turn into and may

          9  go to just from a day- to- day patrol.  People just

         10  see officer and expect you to help.  And as peace

         11  officers, it doesn't stop at just us doing car

         12  stops.  We protect the safety of the public in New

         13  York City as well.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  At this point I

         15  have questions from Council Member Melissa Mark-

         16  Viverito.  Council Member?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO:  Thank

         18  you, Mr. Chair and thank you, panelists.  And if you

         19  answered some of these questions before or anything,

         20  I apologize.

         21                 I want to understand a little bit

         22  about the communication between, I guess TLC and the

         23  Mayor's Office, or how these decisions came about.

         24  I'm not understanding.  I think in your testimony

         25  you mention that you did have the sirens at one
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          2  point, correct?  I mean, this was something that was

          3  there?

          4                 MR. STAFFORD:  Yes, we had the

          5  sirens.  They them away in about June of 2005.

          6  That's when these Escapes came in.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  And

          8  the rationale that was given at that point, if you

          9  could explain that from the Mayor's Office or the

         10  Administration?

         11                 MS. HOLLINGSWORTH:  Noreen

         12  Hollingsworth, Teamsters Local 237.  The rationale

         13  that was given was that it was a Mayoral Order.

         14  That was the statement given to us in several

         15  meetings with the heads of the agency at 40 Rector

         16  Street, additionally at the Woodside facility.

         17  Mayoral Order.  When pressed, they said there was no

         18  Order, and I guess I'll cover that when I testify.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO:  Oh,

         20  you haven't testified yet, okay.  So then I'll weigh

         21  in that because I was reading your testimony.

         22  Because clearly, I do completely understand what

         23  you're saying, and it's a rational request that's

         24  being made.  I think in the interest of safety it's

         25  definitely something I'm interested in looking
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          2  further.

          3                 But I don't know if you are able to

          4  compare, I'm just curious to know with regards to

          5  the Department of Environmental Protection, because

          6  obviously all the others I can see where there's

          7  direct interaction with people when you're

          8  fulfilling your job, and obviously, there's always

          9  an element of surprise or an element of danger when

         10  that happens.  But a DEP police officer, what do

         11  they do?  I know it's not your area, but I don't

         12  know -- are they interacting with people?  Or is

         13  more property that they're --

         14                 MS. HOLLINGSWORTH:  Honestly, I've

         15  never gone in depth to what they do, but I do know

         16  that they patrol like public parks and stuff like

         17  that.  They patrol to protect like reservoirs and

         18  things like that, so I guess they feel like they

         19  never know what they may run into at a reservoir.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:

         21  Right.  Well, it's a protection, but obviously I

         22  don't think that the level of interaction is

         23  probably as much as you would have, for instance. So

         24  I'm trying to understand the rationale as to why

         25  they would maintain that level versus the Taxi and
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          2  Limousine Commission inspectors, but I did not know

          3  you had not testified.  I'll wait for your testimony

          4  because obviously there's information there.  I want

          5  to thank you for the information.  It's something I

          6  was not aware of, and I appreciate it.  Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

          9  much, Council Member Melissa Mark- Viverito.

         10  Council Member Brewer.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you.  I

         12  share Council Member Mark Viverito's statement.  I

         13  certainly thank you, the Chair, for always bringing

         14  these important issues to the attention of the City

         15  Council.  You're very lucky to be before this

         16  particular Committee.

         17                 My question is, I represent the West

         18  Side of Manhattan, and I don't have a car, so I'm

         19  often in a taxi, and I was always say how great you

         20  are to the driver who's always complaining about the

         21  big and bad TLC.

         22                 My question though is, how do you

         23  coordinate with the Police Department in terms of

         24  who decides what to stop? Because obviously they do

         25  have the advantage, if you will, of the kinds of
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          2  quote, unquote safety instruments that you would

          3  like to have on your cars.  I was just wondering if

          4  you could just talk for a few minutes as to how they

          5  stop as opposed to how you stop the cars that are

          6  perhaps violating the law.  That might sort of

          7  outline what your concerns are about the tools you

          8  need to be able to do it right.

          9                 MR. STAFFORD:  As far as car stop,

         10  the way it's conducted it's the same way.  There's

         11  no difference.  In fact, if we were both in unmarked

         12  cars, you wouldn't know which one was NYPD and which

         13  one was TLC.  The only difference today is they have

         14  red lights, and they have the sirens to pull the car

         15  over.  And they have the emergency lights in the

         16  back, which are strobe lights that flash which tell

         17  the vehicles behind you that you're on an

         18  enforcement stop.  You're not moving.  They're not

         19  going to come up behind you and honk the horn and

         20  yell out the window, get out of my way, I'm trying

         21  to get to work, whatever.  The car stop is the same,

         22  exact thing.  There is no difference.  We were

         23  trained that way, the same way NYPD was trained to

         24  perform a car stop because we may approach the wrong

         25  vehicle one day.  We've approached stolen vehicles,
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          2  made the arrest with the tools that we have.  The

          3  NYPD thinks that we're amazing in how we do our job.

          4                 LIEUTENANT BROWN:  The only

          5  difference is that the Taxi and Limousine Commission

          6  we specifically target anybody working for- hire,

          7  whether you're licensed by the Commission or

          8  unlicensed, compared to NYPD who do routine traffic

          9  stops on regular vehicles.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you.  I

         11  guess my point is that when they do it, even for the

         12  for- hires, it's a lot easier because of the tools

         13  they have to be able to do it, that's what I was

         14  trying to elicit.

         15                 LIEUTENANT BROWN:  Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         17  very much.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         19  Council Member Brewer.  You know, I think it was

         20  Officer Brown who had mentioned again on this line

         21  that respect that you're not getting even from, like

         22  for instance the NYPD.  That's a concern for me

         23  because in time of need you're going to need back up

         24  from other, not just TLC inspectors, but maybe from

         25  NYPD.  Again, you believe that with this new car,
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          2  lack of siren, amber light, that there has been a

          3  decrease in respect for the TLC inspectors because

          4  of that, is that correct?

          5                 LIEUTENANT BROWN:  Yes, sir.  That's

          6  the truth. Just the past summer, I was in the hybrid

          7  SUV vehicle.  I was at Shea Stadium at the U.S. Open

          8  along with NYPD Highway Patrol and with that high

          9  activity, high volume area, there are certain areas

         10  that are only for authorized personnel, which would

         11  be enforcement officers.  Well, when I approached

         12  one of the areas in my SUV, a highway cop stopped me

         13  and he was like, where do you think you're going?

         14  So I was in uniform, fortunately, and then he looked

         15  at the side of the car and he goes, oh, that's

         16  strange.  I've never seen that before, I'm sorry, go

         17  ahead.  He didn't even recognize me as an officer

         18  although I was there doing the same thing he was.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO:  But to

         20  me it just also defies logic to kind of switch up

         21  the color of the car, the decals, the things that

         22  people have come to learn as TLC inspector. I mean,

         23  you're shifting it in mid stream, and it just really

         24  creates a lot of confusion, so for the sake of

         25  uniformity and safety in the end, I don't really
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          2  understand.  Even if it was, let's say, and I

          3  understand your issue with the new models of the

          4  cars, but, if anything, they could have maybe kept

          5  it the same color with the same decals.  I mean, it

          6  just really seems odd that it was such a major

          7  shift.  And it just leads to greater confusion, so,

          8  yes, I understand what you're saying.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I want to thank

         10  these inspectors here and the Officer and the

         11  Captain.  I want to thank you for your time and

         12  testimony, and I believe it's time well spent

         13  because if it puts a face on the issue here and what

         14  you're facing out in the real world on a day- to-

         15  day basis, and I'm hopeful that, again, after this

         16  Hearing, we can negotiate with the Administration to

         17  effectuate possibly some change to the situation.

         18  So, again, thank you very much for your time.  Thank

         19  you.

         20                 Our last person to give testimony on

         21  this issue today is Noreen Hollingsworth.  Noreen?

         22  Thank you very much.  And I understand we have a Yan

         23  Velez is also here.  Yan, you want to step forward

         24  as well?  Please identify yourself for the record.

         25                 MS. HOLLINGSWORTH:  Noreen
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          2  Hollingsworth, trustee, Teamsters Local 237.

          3                 CAPTAIN VELEZ:  Captain Yan Velez of

          4  the Taxi and Limousine Commission.

          5                 MS. HOLLINGSWORTH:  Good morning.  My

          6  name is Noreen Hollingsworth.  I'm a trustee with

          7  Local 237 under President Floyd. Additionally, I

          8  hold the title of Chief with the Taxi and Limousine

          9  Commission.

         10                 I am assigned to represent New York's

         11  proudest, the men and women who work as officers for

         12  the Taxi and Limousine Commission.  In doing so,

         13  there were several written communications regarding

         14  the issue of sirens and lights between the union and

         15  TLC. On November 1, 2006 Deputy Commissioner Louis

         16  J. Tazzi wrote a letter in response to the Union's

         17  request to obtain a copy of the Mayoral Order to

         18  decommission all non- emergency vehicles throughout

         19  the City, a copy of which I have for you.

         20                 The Deputy Commissioner Tazzi wrote

         21  that there is no written Mayoral Order directing

         22  that the lights and sirens be removed because this

         23  emergency package may only be installed on City

         24  emergency vehicles.  Since TLC vehicles are not used

         25  in emergency situations, the lights and sirens are
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          2  being removed to prevent their misuse.  He further

          3  states that the TLC requested that the full police

          4  package be installed on TLC inspector vehicles.

          5  However, they must first obtain approval from the

          6  oversight agencies including DCAS and the Mayor's

          7  Office.

          8                 When such a request was made in 2004,

          9  TLC was turned down because TLC inspectors are not

         10  considered to be emergency responders.  Therefore,

         11  this equipment could not be installed on TLC

         12  vehicles.  My head is spinning.  I find this

         13  difficult to follow since I would characterize this

         14  as circular reasoning.

         15                 We contest the premise that TLC

         16  inspector vehicles, also known as sector cars, are

         17  not emergency vehicles.  The vehicle and traffic law

         18  clearly indicates that TLC enforcement is considered

         19  a legitimate law enforcement operation under state

         20  law.

         21                 As for TLC requesting the package, we

         22  had the package all along.  Why would they suddenly

         23  have to request them again?  We perform car stops,

         24  which is the most dangerous function of any law

         25  enforcement officer.
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          2                 While watching television on

          3  Saturday, April 14, 2007, there was a police program

          4  which depicted an officer on a car stop with two

          5  gentlemen.  The two men attacked the officer.  One

          6  grabbed him by the legs, while the other shot and

          7  killed the officer.  It was recorded by his

          8  dashboard camera.  How sickening this was to see.

          9                 Just when I thought it was okay to

         10  take a breath, the story of brother Officer Thomas

         11  Lindsay from Utica was mentioned in the New York

         12  Times.  Our brother officer was a young, vibrant 32-

         13  year- old.  He was shot in the head and killed on

         14  Thursday, April 12, 2007 while conducting a car stop

         15  for what would have been a minor violation.

         16                 Utica's Police Chief, C. Allen Pylman

         17  is quoted as saying, Traffic stops are notoriously

         18  the most dangerous.  It is always the routine stop.

         19  The Chief's statement says it all. Traffic stops are

         20  the most dangerous function performed by law

         21  enforcement.  This is known not only across the

         22  country, but around the world.  Why suddenly have

         23  our lives become expendable?

         24                 Thank you for having this Hearing to

         25  listen to the concerns of our members who are
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          2  risking their lives in the service of their

          3  community.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you.

          5  Just mention your name for the record.

          6                 CAPTAIN VELEZ:  Good afternoon.  I'm

          7  Captain Yan Velez.  I've been with the agency for 18

          8  years, and throughout my tenure at the agency I've

          9  always tried to make improvements at the agency and

         10  always try to make better and always try to make

         11  things work.

         12                 One of the things I did several years

         13  ago was interact with the First Deputy Commissioner

         14  that was there at the time.  We spoke about the

         15  right to be able to make car stops and the proper

         16  methods of doing it, and what the law is regarding

         17  that. What took place was, the Taxi and Limousine

         18  Commission wound up doing their own searching and

         19  referencing the laws, speaking to their attorneys,

         20  and wound up coming up with an interim order that

         21  referenced the law and recognized our vehicles as

         22  emergency vehicles.  So the Taxi and Limousine

         23  Commission recognized our vehicles in writing within

         24  the agency as emergency vehicles within our training

         25  guide, and we could provide that paperwork for you.
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          2                 So when the Taxi and Limousine

          3  Commission took this position, they didn't just take

          4  out our lights and sirens.  What they did at first

          5  was, they purchased vehicles that had no equipment

          6  at all, no lights, no sirens, no yellow lights, no

          7  red lights, no lights at all.  They started

          8  utilizing those vehicles for transportation

          9  purposes, not for enforcement purposes.  We kept our

         10  lights and sirens even after they said they had told

         11  us that there was a Mayoral Order not to have lights

         12  and sirens.  We wound up patrolling and continuing

         13  to patrol with our old vehicles. Newer vehicles

         14  started to come in with yellow lights.  Those are

         15  the hybrids that you see there, the SUV's.  They do

         16  have PA systems in them.

         17                 The agency has taken this position,

         18  and we still have that interim Order that shows that

         19  the agency recognizes our vehicle as per the law, as

         20  emergency vehicles.  What happens is, all of our

         21  brother officers and sister officers that are out

         22  there are concerned about the City.  They want to

         23  make a difference in the City, so what do they do?

         24  They take whatever steps they have to within the

         25  laws to try to stop vehicles.  But it becomes
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          2  dangerous because they're honking their horns,

          3  people aren't recognizing their vehicles.

          4                 One the terms used for the vehicles

          5  you see here, the SUV's that we have, is called the

          6  ice cream truck.  And the reason why we have that

          7  term there is because people get annoyed and upset

          8  because we're blocking traffic, and they don't

          9  understand that we're on a car stop because all we

         10  have is a warning light. I've even seen Con Edison

         11  with lights and sirens responding to emergencies

         12  throughout the City, and I would like to ask that

         13  the City Council help us with this agency to provide

         14  us the tools that we've always had and that their

         15  own recognition that the law says that we can have

         16  that.

         17                 There was one thing that I wanted to

         18  reference.  We were talking about DEP here, and what

         19  was the point of referencing them.  I believe the

         20  point of referencing every other department listed

         21  there was because all these departments make

         22  arrests, and all these departments have to transport

         23  prisoners, and one of the references in the law is

         24  when you transport prisoners, you're an authorized

         25  emergency vehicle, so we all make arrests, and we
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          2  all transport prisoners, and we all have to respond

          3  to emergencies, and that leaves some of us without

          4  help because sometimes NYPD is tied up.

          5                 One other thing that we do is we do

          6  joint operations with NYPD, and they sometimes do

          7  ride alongs with us, and it has become almost

          8  impossible with NYPD for them to go with us, like

          9  when we go into the 67 and we're dealing with now

         10  vans, and we're trying to stop these huge vans with

         11  10 to 15 passengers with a little Prius.  I mean,

         12  the officers are like, they almost sometimes refuse

         13  to work with us now when we've had such a good

         14  rapport of working with them, and they're saying we

         15  can't do it.  It's not possible.  They don't have

         16  the vehicles to provide for us for us to go along

         17  with them.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         19  Captain. Historically, since they referred to you're

         20  not used in emergency situations, but more to the

         21  point that you're open to abuse, historically, has

         22  there been any situations of abuse from the officers

         23  with flashing red lights before?

         24                 MS. HOLLINGSWORTH:  There has been no

         25  abuse by our officers of any rank.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Well, that's

          3  significant as well.  Plus the fact that any time

          4  you pull over anybody for anything, there's always

          5  the strong potential for danger.  Nobody likes to be

          6  pulled over to begin with, especially questioned.

          7  Okay, by the way, don't refer to these guys as

          8  gentlemen, please. Thugs, dirtbags, whatever.  The

          9  New York Times drives me crazy with this.  Somebody

         10  kills a cop and he was a gentleman?  Or he kills

         11  anybody.  Please.  This is what we do, all of us.

         12  Any other questions from any of my colleagues?

         13  Well, we thank you, Ms. Hollingsworth and Captain.

         14  We appreciate it.

         15                 We're just going to take a brief five

         16  minute recess. We'll come right back here

         17  approximately 11:18.  Thank you.

         18                 (Five minute recess taken)

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Good afternoon,

         20  everyone. Welcome back to the Civil Service and

         21  Labor Committee Hearing.  My apologies for the

         22  delay.  In Part Two of today's Hearing of the Civil

         23  Service Labor Committee we'll be considering Reso.

         24  738, which calls for the support of a federal

         25  legislation Senate Bill 201 known as the 9/11 Heroes
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          2  Health Improvement Act of 2007, which would

          3  establish a grant program for people suffering

          4  health effects from the September 11 attacks.

          5                 This federal legislation would

          6  provide grants for programs that provide medical and

          7  mental health monitoring, tracking and treatment to

          8  individuals whose health has been directly impacted

          9  as a result of the attacks on the World Trade Center

         10  and the Pentagon.  Federal legislation would include

         11  any individual who worked at Ground Zero, Fresh

         12  Kills or the Pentagon, or who lived or worked in the

         13  vicinity of such areas and whose health has

         14  deteriorated as a result of the attacks.  These

         15  individuals would have to had been evaluated by a

         16  physician or mental health professional for 9/11

         17  related health conditions and needs treatment for

         18  such conditions.

         19                 To me, an important aspect of this

         20  legislation on the federal level is that it

         21  recognizes that 9/11 was not merely a City tragedy,

         22  but was, in fact, and in truth, a national tragedy,

         23  and I appreciate the efforts of our federal

         24  legislators on that effort.  At this point I'd like

         25  to call up Joel Shufro from NYCOSH to make a brief
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          2  statement.  Thank you, Joel.  Thank you for being

          3  here.

          4                 MR. SHUFRO:  Thank you for holding

          5  this Hearing, and I appreciate the opportunity to

          6  testify.  I am not going to read my testimony, which

          7  is way too long, and I'm sure would put you to

          8  sleep, but I would like to summarize it for you.

          9                 I represent the New York Committee

         10  for Occupational Safety and Health, a non- profit

         11  organization of 200 local unions and about 300

         12  individuals in the New York metropolitan area

         13  dedicated to every worker's right to a safe and

         14  healthy workplace.            We have been very

         15  active in dealing with the environmental and human

         16  tragedy that occurred on September 11, 2001.  From

         17  Day One, NYCOSH was the first organization to put

         18  out a fact sheet about the environmental health

         19  hazards that workers and residents would face based

         20  upon what we knew of the contaminants that they

         21  would be exposed to.  About three and a half years,

         22  four years, we were regarded as hysterical about

         23  this.  I would say to you in retrospect we weren't

         24  hysterical enough.

         25                 The number of workers that are now
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          2  sick in this City are on an epidemic proportion.  Of

          3  the 16,000 workers who have gone through the

          4  screening program at Mt. Sinai, over 70 percent of

          5  them are showing respiratory problems diagnosed by

          6  doctors at Mt. Sinai, so this is a very, very real

          7  problem for workers in this City and actually for

          8  workers throughout the country because people came

          9  here from all over the country to respond to the

         10  emergency, have gone back and have developed

         11  symptoms now which are well documented.  In fact,

         12  problems are even greater than that because many of

         13  the workers who worked down here were immigrant

         14  workers who have now gone back to their homelands

         15  where they do not have appropriate medical

         16  treatment, and in trying to reach out to all these

         17  workers is very difficult.

         18                 As in my testimony, we list the types

         19  of symptoms that workers are experiencing, and the

         20  thing that the Committee needs to understand is that

         21  some workers and residents developed symptoms

         22  immediately, and have them continuously, some have

         23  developed them immediately, some have gone away.

         24  Others are developing symptoms today, four or five

         25  years later, so we do not know what the long- term
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          2  consequences of the exposure to the toxic substances

          3  released by the collapse of the buildings will be,

          4  but it is of great concern that we are now seeing

          5  cancers develop. Whether they are related is a

          6  matter of medical debate, but there are a large

          7  number of people who believe that they have been

          8  exposed to a wide range of toxics, levels of dioxin,

          9  for example, that have not been seen anywhere else

         10  in the country ever, and are suffering as a result

         11  of that exposure.

         12                 Of course, there are mental health

         13  issues. Unfortunately, there has not been funding.

         14  Two things.  You may have seen the article in the

         15  Daily News this week that reports that close to a

         16  100 people have died as a result of exposures at the

         17  World Trade Center and in the surrounding area, so

         18  that is the first thing.

         19                 The second thing is that starting in

         20  about August of this year as a result, in part, the

         21  result of the large number of workers who are sick

         22  and the Daily News series of editorials for which

         23  they just won the Pulitzer Prize, there's been a

         24  recognition that this is a major problem.  We've

         25  seen a change in the political typography on this
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          2  issue.  Senator Hillary Clinton, as well as

          3  Congressman Nadler and Congresswoman Maloney have

          4  been out in front raising this issue trying to get

          5  the Congress to deal with this epidemic of disease

          6  that we face in this City.

          7                 Unfortunately, there's not been

          8  funding for workers or residents to get medical

          9  treatment.  Until very, very recently, not one

         10  federal dollar was spent on treatment.  We did get

         11  some money several years ago to begin a screening

         12  program, and thousands and workers have gone through

         13  the screening program, but there was no money to get

         14  medical treatment.

         15                 As a result of this change in August

         16  and the work of members of Congress, we have

         17  received a small amount of money for medical

         18  treatment.  This money is going to expire in July,

         19  August or September of this year.  The Bush

         20  Administration has put an additional $25 million for

         21  next year into the budget, some which is woefully

         22  inadequate.  The Mayor has estimated that it's going

         23  to cost about $350 million a year to provide

         24  adequate treatment to those who have been made sick.

         25                 Worse, we are very concerned about
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          2  reports that the federal government may withdraw or

          3  reduce its support for the medical care centers of

          4  excellence, Mt. Sinai's World Trade Center worker

          5  and volunteer screening program, and instead

          6  required 9/11 health victims to pursue treatment of

          7  their own in the health care market.  That is, they

          8  want to privatize the delivery of health services.

          9  This would have dire consequences for the people who

         10  have or may develop 9/11 related illnesses and would

         11  be a grave error in public health policy.

         12                 The high level of expertise in

         13  diagnosing environmentally induced symptoms and

         14  illnesses, associating them with environmental

         15  exposures and rendering effective treatment through

         16  access to broad institutional resources that these

         17  hospital and clinic based centers currently provide

         18  could not be duplicated. We're 9/11 health victims

         19  forced to rely on a market based health care model.

         20                 It is essential to maintain the

         21  medical centers of excellence because they are

         22  capable, as individual health care providers in a

         23  fragmented market are not, of engaging in targeted

         24  outreach and public health education, appropriate

         25  long term medical monitoring, identification of
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          2  disease trends and collection and sharing of data to

          3  inform clinical practice and public health policy.

          4                 The 9/11 Heroes Health Improvement

          5  Act, which this Committee is considering supporting,

          6  introduced by Senator Hillary Clinton, takes an

          7  important first step in providing necessary

          8  resources for medical and mental health monitoring,

          9  tracking and treatment of individuals whose health

         10  has been directly impacted as a result of the

         11  attacks on New York City and the Pentagon on

         12  September 11, 2001 by providing grants to

         13  organizations such as the Worker and Volunteer Trade

         14  Center Medical Treatment Program and entities

         15  throughout the country who can provide assistance to

         16  those who came in our country's hour of need to work

         17  at or around the site.

         18                 We do have two concerns with the

         19  Senator's bill. First, we believe that there should

         20  be a compensation component to the bill.  Those

         21  people who have been deprived of their livelihood

         22  should receive compensation, and we think that it is

         23  a omission which should be considered, and we hope

         24  that the Senator would consider amending her bill to

         25  provide adequate compensation to those who are no
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          2  longer able to work as a result of their exposure.

          3                 Secondly, the bill creates priorities

          4  in terms of who gets treatment, and it provides

          5  first priority to those people who have no health

          6  insurance.  What this will mean for unionized

          7  workers in those unions who have health plans is

          8  that they will be forced to pick up the costs of the

          9  tragedy and the illness that is the result of this

         10  tragedy, and we do not believe that that is fair.

         11  We believe that this is a national responsibility

         12  that should be picked up by the federal government

         13  and that all workers, no matter who they are and

         14  residents, I should say, should be provided with

         15  appropriate treatment.  We do not think that we

         16  should place a burden on the cities or private

         17  health funds, which are jointly administered by

         18  unions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Mr. Shufro,

         20  thank you very much for your testimony today.  I

         21  also want to thank you for your efforts with this

         22  issue of 9/11 health effects.  We also, of course,

         23  appreciate the efforts of Senator Clinton,

         24  Councilman Nadler and Councilman Maloney regarding

         25  this issue, and the two issues that you did bring up
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          2  are valid concerns, especially that of the union

          3  workers and the cost to that worker, so again, we

          4  appreciate your raising those issues and for your

          5  time here today. Thank you very much.

          6                 I want to acknowledge that Council

          7  Members Melissa Mark- Viverito was here.  We have

          8  Council Member Jim Gennaro here, and Council Member

          9  Mike Nelson, thank you very much.  Once again, legal

         10  staff Harold Gates, Elisa Chae, Legislative Aide

         11  Jeff Gottlieb and Joan Povolny, our Policy Analyst,

         12  for putting this Hearing together.  Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 Our next panel will be Jim Woodworth

         15  from the New York Detoxification Program, Steve Mona

         16  from the New York Rescue Workers Detoxification

         17  Program and Joe Higgins.  Gentlemen? Gentlemen,

         18  thank you for being here today.  Once again, I

         19  apologize for the delay.  Please just state your

         20  name and give your testimony, please.

         21                 MR. HIGGINS:  I'd like to thank you

         22  folks for giving us the opportunity to give our

         23  testimony here today on a very important issue,

         24  which I take very personal, my colleagues and I. My

         25  name is Joseph Higgins.  I served in the FDNY as a
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          2  firefighter for 18 years.  In my career I fought

          3  more than 1,000 inner city fires.  I also served as

          4  the drill instructor for the New York Fire Academy

          5  for over six years and trained over 4,200

          6  firefighters who are currently on the job.

          7  Together, my father, three of my brothers and I have

          8  given more than 100 years to the FDNY.  My brother

          9  Tim, who was a lieutenant in Squad 252 was lost when

         10  the North Tower collapsed.  My fourth brother serves

         11  as an NYPD lieutenant.  We are, in fact, a civil

         12  service family like no other.

         13                 I became very ill as a result of the

         14  time I spent working at the World Trade Center.  I

         15  was hospitalized for seven days at the end of May,

         16  2002 when I suffered multiple asthma attacks.  My

         17  children were frightened, and I was very fearful for

         18  my life.  I recovered, but I was told my

         19  firefighting days were over.  I was taking six

         20  medications that I was told I would need for the

         21  rest of my life.  Dr. Prezant, Deputy Medical

         22  Director for the FDNY told me I was one of the worst

         23  lung cases he had seen to date.  I began having

         24  nightmares and couldn't sleep more than two hours a

         25  night.  Even that was at intervals of 20 to 30
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          2  minutes.  By July, 2002, being unable to sleep was

          3  driving me crazy.  I would awake in a sweat caught

          4  in nightmares of the event.  I had resigned myself

          5  to the fact that this was how it would be for the

          6  rest of my life.  I still felt better off than the

          7  guys that were buried.  Cut and dry.

          8                 Then four years and five months ago,

          9  I found out about the New York Rescue Workers

         10  Detoxification Project.  I enrolled and was put on a

         11  regimen of vitamins, minerals and amino acids to

         12  help me get to sleep.  By the third day I was

         13  sleeping seven or eight hours a night for the first

         14  time since 9/11.  I was safely off all my inhalers.

         15  By the time I completed the program, I felt like I

         16  had been shot out of a cannon.  I felt fantastic.  It's

         17  now been more than four years since I completed and

         18  I still feel better than ever.  Because my symptoms

         19  are gone, I don't need medications to suppress them.

         20    I can exercise as much as I want.  I can enjoy my

         21  friends, my wife, my kids and yes, my grandkids.  I

         22  do have two of those.  I feel so strongly about the

         23  benefits of this program that I have referred over

         24  350 firefighter friends to it.  Nothing makes me

         25  feel better than to see them get their lives back as
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          2  well.

          3                 We are behind your efforts to

          4  increase the funding available for treatment and to

          5  increase the options that are available to those who

          6  still have health problems so many years after their

          7  exposures.  The rescue workers should have the right

          8  to choose any therapy that truly works for them.

          9                 We believe that if we can fund over

         10  $100 million in public funds to support projects at

         11  FDNY and Mt. Sinai, a similar amount should be

         12  devoted to rehabilitation, rehabilitation, not

         13  tracking our deteriorating health.  We already know

         14  we're sick. Rescue workers want to get better.  They

         15  want to stay on the job serving others pursuing the

         16  careers that they have chosen.

         17                 The City Council showed tremendous

         18  leadership when it donated more $300,000 to support

         19  the detoxification of rescue workers.  Many families

         20  thank you for this, for giving them back the

         21  husbands and wives they knew before 9/11.  I hope

         22  you will do more to bring public funds to this

         23  project and to other programs that can offer true

         24  rehabilitation.  That is what is most important.

         25                 On behalf of all my brothers and
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          2  sisters, I am asking you to remember that and to do

          3  all you can to give them the chance to recover.

          4  It's all about recovery.  Thanks.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you, Mr.

          6  Higgins.

          7                 MR. MONA:  It is still morning,

          8  right?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Barely.

         10                 MR. MONA:  Good morning, Committee

         11  Chair, Committee Members.  My name is Steve Mona.

         12  I'm a retired lieutenant with the NYPD.  I've had

         13  the pleasure of working with Councilman Nelson in

         14  the past on some issues when I was with the

         15  Department.

         16                 I don't have a prepared speech today.

         17    I have come twice down and testified, and I thank

         18  you for giving us that opportunity.  The reason I'm

         19  here today, and the reason why I made the two and a

         20  half trip down here, is because I believe in the

         21  program and when you read things in the paper, it's

         22  very easy to when you're looking to shoot something

         23  down, it's very easy to find something bad about it.

         24    The last couple of days in the newspapers, again

         25  it's been connected to religion, and this is so non-
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          2  political and non- religious for me.

          3                 I have a tremendous difference in

          4  when I started with this program and when I finished

          5  with it.  This is my only way of giving back because

          6  they won't take a dime from us.  They feel we gave

          7  enough and we need to get better, and they're going

          8  to provide us with that.  The only way I can give

          9  back is to try to have as many rescue workers as I

         10  can notify about this program that are feeling the

         11  way I did.  I didn't know Joe Higgins until I met

         12  him last year, and after talking to him for about an

         13  hour, I was convinced that this was the way to go

         14  for me, and a month later there I was in the

         15  program.

         16                 I have tried really hard to talk to

         17  the people that I worked with who are feeling the

         18  same way I do, and I don't have to really try that

         19  hard to convince them because my differences are

         20  night and day.  They look at me and they say, what

         21  did you do?  I can't believe you look different.

         22  You look better.  You look younger.  When I left the

         23  job, I was done with the job.  Honestly, I'm a year

         24  away from my retirement now, I wish that I knew this

         25  sooner because I can honestly tell you I'd still be
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          2  working.

          3                 Give us that opportunity.  Give us

          4  that chance, and, again, it's just so easy when

          5  you're looking for something to knock something, we

          6  can hang a label on it.  I knew nothing about, and

          7  I'll say the dirty word here, I knew nothing about

          8  Scientology when I started this program.  I know

          9  nothing about it now.  I just know that thanks to

         10  Jim and the people in the program who are from all

         11  walks of life and all religious faiths and all

         12  ethnic backgrounds, I have my life back, and I can't

         13  thank them enough.  And if you guys have this

         14  Hearing once a week, I will be here once a week

         15  prepared, unprepared just to try to get the point

         16  across.  I thank you for your time.

         17                 MR. WOODWORTH:  Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chairman and Council Members.  My name is Jim

         19  Woodworth, and I am the President of the New York

         20  Rescue Workers Detoxification Project.  It is my

         21  responsibility to manage community services and

         22  government affairs for the project.

         23                 I am here today on behalf of the

         24  rescue workers.  It was important to them that the

         25  Council hears their voice.  I have worked at our
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          2  Manhattan facility since it opened its doors to the

          3  rescue workers in September of 2002.  I have made

          4  presentations to thousands of firefighters, police,

          5  sanitation workers, emergency medical personnel and

          6  hazards material workers.  I have also conducted in

          7  depth personal interviews with more than 1,000 of

          8  these men and women. I have heard stories of danger,

          9  tragedy and heroism that are beyond belief.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I know, Steve,

         11  you didn't the mean the dirty word.  I think you

         12  meant the controversial word, Scientology.  I know

         13  you didn't mean it that way.

         14                 MR. WOODWORTH:  No offense taken.  I

         15  am a Scientologist, and I'm proud to be one.  I

         16  guarantee you if I was Jewish and somebody said what

         17  they said about my religion, the New York Post or

         18  the Daily News, there would be an uproar in this

         19  City, but it seems to be okay to take shots at my

         20  religion in America, and I don't understand it.  And

         21  it's not you people.  You guys are here, and I

         22  appreciate that.  I'm sorry, but --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  We appreciate

         24  your time as well.

         25                 MR. WOODWORTH:  What's that?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  We appreciate

          3  your time as well.

          4                 MR. WOODWORTH:  Thank you.  But I

          5  have spoken to more than 1,000 of these guys, and I

          6  personally counseled them on the losses of their

          7  brothers, their sisters, their loved ones, day in

          8  and day out 14 hours a day for the last four and a

          9  half years. And I got to tell you, when I see this

         10  guy walk in, and his doctor tells him you're never

         11  going to get better, you may not live to 50, and

         12  this guy runs three to four miles, four days a week,

         13  he boxes, he's five years older, and then they're

         14  going to take a shot at us in the media?  And

         15  they're upset that we're making them better? Since

         16  when is it okay to take a shot at somebody who's

         17  helping people?  Especially over religion in

         18  America.  So I'll get off my pulpit now, thank you.

         19  All right.

         20                 So I've conducted over 1,000 in depth

         21  personal interviews with the rescue workers of 9/11,

         22  and I can tell you in great detail what the health

         23  concerns of these individuals are. The thing that

         24  I've learned that is most relevant to this Hearing

         25  can be stated in a few words.  They want their lives
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          2  back.  The more time has passed, the more intense

          3  this need has become.

          4                 It has now been more than five years

          5  since their exposures.  The last year has brought

          6  terrible news, serious illnesses even death.  I

          7  received a call from an ESU worker who told me that

          8  there were more benefits and memorials for police

          9  officers in the last six months than he's ever seen.

         10                 A physician from outside I told the

         11  New York Times last September that the rescue

         12  workers are going to need care for the rest of their

         13  lives.  Many of the men and women who come to us are

         14  in their 30's and 40's.  They want to stay on the

         15  job.  They want to have enough energy left at the

         16  end of the day to interact with their spouses and

         17  children.  They'd like to be able to take a deep

         18  breath and to get a full night's sleep.

         19                 Under the guidance of project

         20  physicians, nearly 800 have accomplished these

         21  goals.  Those who have recovered are just as baffled

         22  as we are that only a handful of City officials seem

         23  to find this worth celebrating.  This only adds to a

         24  concern that many rescue workers have that they are

         25  being forgotten as simply to get on with it, when
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          2  all the evidence suggests they are at great risk.  The

          3  recent resolution by the Council has been a breath

          4  of fresh air.  It is a sign of determinism to bring

          5  new tools and resources to address the current

          6  health crisis.  I urge the Council to pass this very

          7  important resolution and to include detoxification

          8  as one of the health care options for rescue workers

          9  to choose.

         10                 The men and women we have served have

         11  been extremely grateful that we were able to restore

         12  their quality of life.  There is no doubt that a

         13  broad range of therapies will be needed to address

         14  the aftermath of the 9/11 exposures.  I believe that

         15  is exactly the point of the Council's recent

         16  resolution, and speaking as a representative of a

         17  non- profit humanitarian initiative, I can say with

         18  authority that you have hit the mark.  It is time

         19  for the public sector to expand its efforts to bring

         20  relief.  Thank you for your leadership in this

         21  effort.  You cannot move forward too quickly.

         22                 I'd like to publicly invite Mayor

         23  Michael Bloomberg to come into our facility, and it

         24  would be great of him to do so before he speaks out

         25  of turn and inappropriately about something which he
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          2  knows nothing about.  Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

          4  much.  Again, I appreciate everyone's time here

          5  today, and a number of you had mentioned the words

          6  options and choices.  I think that's important.

          7  Regardless of background of any program, again, the

          8  fact that it's working and you two gentlemen are,

          9  again, a sample of the fact that something is

         10  working here, that's the point of this Committee is

         11  to give our residents who have an ill effect due to

         12  these 9/11 attacks a choice in options as far as

         13  getting better for themselves and their families.

         14  Mr. Woodworth, I do appreciate your time here today.

         15  You know, in two other hearings past I have

         16  questioned you regarding the background of the

         17  detoxification project, and I'm not going to go

         18  there because I don't think it's an issue anymore.

         19                 MR. WOODWORTH:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  As far as where

         21  this project came from.  The fact is you're offering

         22  a choice, and if it is working for some, so be it.

         23  The resolution is supporting federal legislation

         24  regarding federal funding.  Are you hopeful at some

         25  point that you can participate in this grant program
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          2  and hopefully get some federal funding?

          3                 MR. WOODWORTH:  Yes, we have every

          4  intention of being included in the $1.5 billion that

          5  is being requested.  Our physicians are licensed

          6  physicians in the State of New York.  We're a

          7  secular program.  We're non- religious, and we'll

          8  treat anybody. And we should be considered.  I want

          9  to see anybody else that's getting the results what

         10  we're doing.  I hear the nice words of the model

         11  medical center that they made up for themselves.

         12  Very nice, catchy, I liked it.  However, those

         13  people that are going to those programs, including

         14  some of the people that you've heard testify before,

         15  have come to us saying we're not getting better.

         16  We're not getting better, and they're receiving

         17  their treatment.  Well, they come to us, and they're

         18  getting better, and that's what should be looked at

         19  and nothing else at this point.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Have you been

         21  in contact with any federal elected official's

         22  office, whether it be Senator Clinton, Congressman

         23  Nadler, Congressman Maloney, regarding how the

         24  federal legislation, if passed, would benefit your

         25  project?
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          2                 MR. WOODWORTH:  Yes.  I've met with

          3  Councilman Nadler with Joe Higgins and some other

          4  rescue workers three and a half years ago.  He

          5  listened very intently.  We invited him to tour.  He

          6  did nothing.

          7                 We have met with Carolyn Maloney at

          8  least three times, twice in D.C., once in New York

          9  City.  She told us that she was going to include us

         10  in this money.  She said she would come in for a

         11  tour.  She's never returned our call again, and she

         12  doesn't include us in any of this with Senator

         13  Clinton.

         14                 We've met with Senator Clinton's

         15  Chief of Staff and health care people in D.C. and

         16  also in New York City, Joe and I did, and we were

         17  told that we would not be able to get a meeting with

         18  the Senator because she felt it would be harmful to

         19  meet with us again, which I don't know what that

         20  means.  And Joe remembers that meeting very well.

         21                 We've also met with an additional 11

         22  U.S. Congressmen and women in their offices in D.C.

         23  We've made more than three trips, and I've got to

         24  tell you it's been fairly disappointing that they

         25  have not stepped up to help the men and women of
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          2  9/11 when they clearly can see, we're not asking Joe

          3  to do this.  These men and women want their rescue

          4  worker colleagues to benefit.  They're sick and they

          5  want them better.

          6                 MR. MONA:  It's important, something

          7  that you said, Councilman.  It really comes down to

          8  options and choice and letting the individual rescue

          9  worker pick the program.  I've developed a real

         10  admiration for Jim and Carol and his staff there

         11  because after banging your head on the wall for four

         12  or five years and literally having to beg, it would

         13  be just so easy for them to pack their bags and go

         14  back to California and say, hey, you know what?  We

         15  tried, and at least we can say we tried.  But they

         16  just constantly do it, and every day it's got to be

         17  discouraging when you go two steps forward and then

         18  three steps backwards, and you think you got

         19  somebody that's willing to help you out, and then

         20  something else comes up.

         21                 Like I said, in the short period of

         22  time that I know Jim I've really developed a deep

         23  admiration for what they do.  It would be so easy to

         24  say, hey, look, we treated 800 people.  We did the

         25  best we could.  Nobody wants to help us out.  I'm
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          2  going back where it's sunny and warm and see you

          3  guys.  And he's looking to expand it, and that's

          4  what I think it's really sad.  I'm not saying

          5  everybody wants to do this, but give us the choice.

          6                 MR. HIGGINS:  Just for me it's kind

          7  of cut and dry that if the numbers speak for

          8  themselves.  You're looking at 700 plus rescue

          9  workers that have done this program, some with more

         10  benefits than others, but all with benefits that can

         11  say this was one of the best things I've ever done

         12  in my life.  Why are physicians not listening to

         13  that?  Where are their ethics saying, well, if this

         14  is going to get them well, maybe we should check

         15  this out.  We're not talking about 50 people.  We're

         16  talking about close to 1,000.  And if you got the

         17  funding to do the next 10,000, you wouldn't have

         18  this problem on this hands five, ten years from now

         19  because we're all going to die, and that's the shame

         20  of it all. Screening is going to watch people die

         21  and make some physician famous because he wrote a

         22  book about how sick they were over the last 10 years

         23  when the fact is we have a treatment that's helpful.

         24  You have to listen to the people that have done the

         25  treatment. Maybe it's the other way around.  Maybe
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          2  the doctors need to listen to the patients.  Thank

          3  you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you.  We

          5  have comment or question from Council Member Jim

          6  Gennaro.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chairman. Jim, is it?

          9                 MR. WOODWORTH:  Yes, sir.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  You're the

         11  program director?  What's your last name, Jim?

         12                 MR. WOODWORTH:  Woodworth.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Woodworth,

         14  okay.  I've been a, I guess in my own life, I've

         15  sort of blended in standard therapies with other

         16  therapies out of the mainstream, and just I have a

         17  personal interest in coming there for myself, not

         18  that I'll be able to promise you that I'll be able

         19  to do something for your program but just for my own

         20  edification and getting to know more about it.

         21  Would that be something that would be possible?

         22                 MR. WOODWORTH:  Yes, in fact, your

         23  colleague, Councilman Hiram Monserrate, completed

         24  the program.  To his credit, he came and did his due

         25  diligence, met with many rescue workers who have
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          2  done the program three, four years ago, saw that

          3  their health effects and the benefits had

          4  maintained.  Then he did the program because he had

          5  had his own issues as a result of working in lower

          6  Manhattan, just like the residents and workers do,

          7  fully resolved his symptoms, and I got to tell you,

          8  the thing that really got him understanding was when

          9  he was sweating out blue and black for three days,

         10  and the oil glands in one out of every three rescue

         11  workers, and here it is five years later.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Was he

         13  working at 9/11?  He was at the Council here, so was

         14  it is his exposure, so his exposure is not 9/11

         15  related?

         16                 MR. WOODWORTH:  Here's thing.  It's

         17  not 9/11 related in terms of first responder, but

         18  there's 1.2 million people that live and work in

         19  lower Manhattan.  There were 33 to 44,000 gallons of

         20  polychlorinated biphenyls.  PCB is a lubricant that

         21  was banned 30 years ago in the Verizon transformers

         22  and the Con Ed cogeneration plant under Tower Seven.

         23    Those transformers were ruptured, some caught on

         24  fire, some was released into the water and into the

         25  pit.
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          2                 To give you an idea of how nasty this

          3  chemical is, we have other experts that are going to

          4  speak better than I, but in 1975 216 New York City

          5  firemen fought a fire in midtown with PCB's. By

          6  1983, 95 percent of those men were dead with

          7  testicular cancer or lung cancer, pancreatic cancer,

          8  heart attack and stroke. There's 1.2 million people

          9  that for 25 months who live and work in lower

         10  Manhattan were exposed to the most toxic dust this

         11  country has ever seen.  In the last 90 days no less

         12  than 25 firefighters and police officers have called

         13  in who we are not able to accept as patients because

         14  they have non- Hodgkins lymphoma, leukemia, and

         15  multiple types of cancers.  Because once they have

         16  cancer, we cannot accept them as a patient.

         17                 So it is as disaster, and it's a

         18  disaster of magnitude, and I think you'll find it

         19  very interesting from the physician and our toxic

         20  tort attorney that are going to speak shortly after

         21  us, and they'll be better equipped to handle those

         22  medical science questions.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Okay, so

         24  after the Hearing I'll give you my card, and we'll

         25  figure out a way to get me down there, at least just
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          2  to see what's going on.

          3                 MR. WOODWORTH:  Great.  I'll have my

          4  staff call you tomorrow.  I have to leave.

          5  Fortunately, we have a major fundraiser tonight, and

          6  it's looking good.  Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Okay.  Good

          8  luck to you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         10  Council Member Gennaro.  Council Member Nelson?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you.

         12  I've signed onto Reso. 738, so that's what my

         13  feelings are.

         14                 MR. WOODWORTH:  Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  The other

         16  part of the issue is that you're doing something I

         17  think very important and very helpful and I believe

         18  saving lives.  The traditional medicine is fine.

         19  Use it when it's necessary, but the alternative

         20  medicines are very important to a lot of people.  It

         21  should not be convoluted with any religious

         22  affiliation as far as people discrediting it. It

         23  doesn't matter.  By the way, nobody should discredit

         24  religion anyway.

         25                 MR. WOODWORTH:  I agree with you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  There's two

          3  points in this. There should not be a wall set up

          4  because of that, so I take issue with that myself.

          5  So I just want to that also on the record.

          6                 MR. WOODWORTH:  Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you for

          8  the work that you're doing.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Council Member

         10  Nelson, thank you very much.  I want to thank this

         11  witness list here.  Thank you very much for being

         12  here today and for your testimony.

         13                 Our last panel for today, Steven

         14  Damiani.  We have Bob Amidon, and Dr. Root.  Thank

         15  you very much for being here today.  Please just

         16  state your name and give your testimony, please.

         17                 MR. DAMIANI:  Retired Detective Steve

         18  Damiani, NYPD. I'm here today because I just

         19  finished the detox program.  The end of the month

         20  was my last day, and I feel amazing.  As you said

         21  before, it helped some people.  I've talked to at

         22  least 100 people through this program, and it has

         23  helped 100 people.  Not one person that I have

         24  talked to saying that it hasn't helped.  Myself, I

         25  felt like a 90 year old person, couldn't breath,
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          2  couldn't sleep, a hundred symptoms.  And in 30 days

          3  I feel like a new person.  And I know there's many,

          4  many more people that need this treatment that are

          5  not getting it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Mr. Damiani,

          7  you're a police officer?

          8                 MR. DAMIANI:  Retired detective.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Retired

         10  detective.  Again, let me take this moment to thank

         11  you for your work that you've done for the City.

         12                 MR. DAMIANI:  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  We appreciate

         14  your job, your work on the job, so thank you very

         15  much and thank you for being here today as well.

         16                 MR. DAMIANI:  Thank you, and I was

         17  retired when I went down there and I spent many days

         18  down there non- stop, and the symptoms that I got I

         19  knew I was dying and you die for your country and

         20  that's the way I was going to feel about it.  Until

         21  this program came, I tried everything and nothing

         22  made me feel better. To me, this is the only program

         23  that worked that's out there, and other people have

         24  to know about it.  There are many people out there

         25  that are very sick that need this program, so
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          2  whatever you guys can do to get a program on Long

          3  Island.  I live in Suffolk County.  I drove here two

          4  hours every day for 30 days in a row, and it was

          5  well worth it, so thank you very much.

          6                 DR. ROOT:  Good afternoon, Chairman

          7  Addabbo and Members of the Committee.  I'm very

          8  pleased to be here to give testimony before this

          9  Committee.  My name is Dr. David Root.  I'm a Board

         10  Certified Specialist in Occupational Medicine.  I

         11  hold a Master's Degree from Johns Hopkins

         12  University.  Prior to entering private practice in

         13  1980, I served in the United States Airforce as a

         14  flight surgeon and pilot, and I retired as a full

         15  Colonel.  I'm the Senior Medical Advisor for the New

         16  York Rescue Workers Detoxification Project.

         17                 Over the last two decades I've

         18  supervised the detoxification of nearly 4,000

         19  individuals at my occupational medicine practice in

         20  Sacramento, California.  I have acted as Chair of

         21  three international conferences on human

         22  detoxification.  The most recent of these was in New

         23  York City at Hunter College and attracted physicians

         24  and researchers from the U.S., Europe, Russia and

         25  Asia.  I have also had the opportunity to
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          2  collaborate on pilot programs and research projects

          3  regarding the Hubbard Program with scientists in the

          4  U.S., Eastern Europe and Russia.

          5                 I came to New York within months of

          6  the attack on the World Trade Center.  I had been

          7  contacted by members of the FDNY as well as the

          8  Health and Safety Officer for the firefighters. They

          9  were aware of Mr. Hubbard's detoxification program

         10  and felt that it might be useful in the aftermath of

         11  the unprecedented exposures at the World Trade

         12  Center.

         13                 In these early meetings the viewpoint

         14  expressed by health officials was that the symptoms

         15  then being seen in the rescue workers would resolve

         16  over time.  This is exactly what we saw with the

         17  veterans of the first Persian Gulf War who had been

         18  told a decade earlier, and I felt that it was overly

         19  optimistic for them as well as for the rescue

         20  workers here in New York City.

         21                 A scientific advisory board was

         22  formed to guide the establishment of a

         23  detoxification facility in lower Manhattan, and

         24  other members shared my concerns.  More than five

         25  years after the attacks, it appears that the
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          2  condition of some members of the rescue and recovery

          3  forces is deteriorating even faster than we had

          4  anticipated.  It does not surprise me that few

          5  medical experts in New York are familiar with the

          6  long history of implementation of this

          7  detoxification regimen or the numerous publications

          8  that have established its safety.  It was certainly

          9  not a part of my medical education.  I became aware

         10  of it only through searching through the medical

         11  literature to find something that I could do to help

         12  patients who had been exposed to harmful chemicals.

         13                 These cases can be very complicated.

         14  I've been involved in many of them over the years

         15  and had much interaction with many insurance

         16  carriers and companies whose workers were routinely

         17  exposed to chemicals.  One case regarding the

         18  compensability of detoxification went as far as the

         19  California Supreme Court, which found it to be a

         20  valid rehabilitative therapy. Most professionals who

         21  are asked to respond to chemical incidents have

         22  trained to view them only from the perspective of

         23  possible acute effects, in other words, an acute

         24  poisoning.  However, the over last decades evidence

         25  has accumulated that exposures at levels not
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          2  previously considered toxic can cause a range of

          3  chronic health defects including fatigue, muscle

          4  aches, pains, vision problems, mood swings, short

          5  term memory loss, sleep problems.

          6                 The exposures can be very small.

          7  Scientists examining the impact of manmade chemicals

          8  on the endocrine system have noted adverse effects

          9  from exposures at the one part per trillion level.

         10  To put this in perspective, one part per trillion is

         11  equivalent to one drop of detergent in enough

         12  dishwater to fill a string of railroad cars 10 miles

         13  long.

         14                 It is not possible to understand or

         15  explain these problems in the same way one would

         16  describe a disease caused by a virus.  In most

         17  cases, individuals are exposed to multiple chemicals

         18  at varying levels and for varying amounts of time.

         19  There is a wide range of individual sensitivity to

         20  these substances. This makes the variables almost

         21  infinite.  The attempt to understand exposures

         22  during the Persian Gulf War exemplifies this

         23  complexity.  Hundreds of millions of federal dollars

         24  have been devoted to research projects, yet

         25  considerable disagreement remains regarding which
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          2  toxic chemical accounts for the symptoms that

          3  continue to plague those veterans.

          4                 This does not mean that nothing can

          5  be done.  In literally thousands of cases in my

          6  practice I have found detoxification to be an

          7  effective rehabilitative therapy.  In most cases,

          8  symptoms associated with the low level exposures are

          9  completely resolved.  If not fully resolved, they

         10  are generally greatly relieved.

         11                 Similarly, project physicians have

         12  helped hundreds of men and women overcome the

         13  problems that developed after their service at the

         14  World Trade Center.  While official spokespersons

         15  for the large public health institutions in New York

         16  have been slow to express support or thanks for this

         17  work, staff know of these results and send patients

         18  to us for help.  As I mentioned earlier, my military

         19  career was devoted to preserving the health of those

         20  in uniformed service.  It is deeply troubling to me

         21  to think that thousands could be suffering when the

         22  means exists to bring them relief.

         23                 It is fitting that the City Council

         24  should come forward at this time and take steps to

         25  broaden the range of therapies available to rescue
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          2  workers.  I have no doubt that detoxification can

          3  benefit many of these men and women.  They should

          4  have access to this service and to any other forms

          5  of rehabilitation that could restore quality of

          6  life.

          7                 On behalf of the other advisors to

          8  this project, as well as the men and women that have

          9  asked for our help, I want to encourage you to

         10  continue to move forward.  Thank you very much for

         11  your leadership.

         12                 MR. AMIDON:  Good afternoon,

         13  Committee Chairman and Councilman Nelson and

         14  Committee Council.  My name is Robert Amidon. For

         15  the record, that's spelled A- M- I- D- O- N.  As a

         16  member of the Advisory Board for the New York Rescue

         17  Workers Detoxification, I am very pleased to hear

         18  that the City Council has made a formal resolution

         19  in support of Senate Bill 201 the "9/11 Heroes

         20  Health Improvement Act of 2007."

         21                 Action to provide a broader range of

         22  rehabilitative services is truly long overdue.  I

         23  have been an advisor to the detoxification project,

         24  and as an advisor from its very early days in the

         25  mid- 1980's, I have personal reasons for wanting to
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          2  see it grow.  I am licensed to practice in New York

          3  as well as in California and in other states and

          4  have many long- standing professional relationships

          5  in New York City.

          6                 Prior to entering private practice, I

          7  served in the United States Navy retiring as a

          8  commander.  I worked in the field of intelligence

          9  and had the honor of serving several Committees in

         10  the United States Senate as well as the U.S. House

         11  of Representatives.

         12                 I am deeply concerned about the well

         13  being of the uniformed first responders here.  Their

         14  courageous actions, some of which you've heard

         15  already during the rescue and recovery operations

         16  deserve a courageous response from the public health

         17  sector.  Having been involved in numerous cases

         18  relating to chemical injury, I have firsthand

         19  knowledge of the fact that courage can be in short

         20  supply in the aftermath of toxic events. Chemical

         21  accidents stir deep waters.  Over the last half

         22  century manmade chemicals have permeated air, soil,

         23  water, the food chain and the bodies of every

         24  individual on Earth, including the members of this

         25  Council.  This chemical assault has been very weakly
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          2  regulated, and we know little about the long- term

          3  effects of the great majority of these substances.

          4                 When a large scale incident occurs,

          5  concern for the victims and the desire to help them

          6  collides with scientific uncertainty.  In addition,

          7  efforts to respond to health issues can be

          8  complicated, if not crippled, by concerns regarding

          9  liability. No institution is eager to step forward

         10  and accept responsibility for the injuries of tens

         11  of thousands or hundreds of thousands of

         12  individuals.  This is particularly true in the

         13  plaintiff's bar, I might add.

         14                 This is not so much a matter of what

         15  you might hear as a conspiracy but as a defensive

         16  reaction to what seems to be overwhelming and

         17  confusing circumstances.  But that doesn't lessen

         18  the harm caused to those who depend upon public

         19  officials such as yourself for relief.  This has

         20  certainly been a factor in the response to exposures

         21  to both the Vietnam and the Persian Gulf Wars.  If

         22  there had been no question of liability, would

         23  federal officials have been as inclined to assert

         24  year after year that the illnesses of tens of

         25  thousands of veterans were "in their heads" the
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          2  result of stress rather than toxic exposure?

          3                 If the Committee ever wanted to

          4  inquire of me of the various debates between the

          5  Department of Defense on the one hand and the

          6  Department of Veterans Affairs on the other,

          7  certainly we could spend three or four hours

          8  discussing the diametrically opposed positions

          9  between the two when it comes to the health and

         10  welfare and treatment of veterans, both in agent

         11  orange problems and with the Persian Gulf Syndrome.

         12                 The New York Rescue Workers

         13  Detoxification Project has operated on a different

         14  model.  It has provided a rehabilitative therapy of

         15  established value in the most expedient manner

         16  possible.  It has not questioned the statements of

         17  rescue workers who believe that significant

         18  deterioration in their health began with their

         19  exposures at the World Trade Center.  It has focused

         20  on bringing relief now at the same time as highly

         21  funded research projects move forward.

         22                 This new model has been noted with

         23  appreciation by members of Congress.  It should be

         24  no surprise that the rescue workers themselves

         25  prefer to have their symptoms alleviated, if
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          2  possible, rather than documented and analyzed.  I

          3  might also add at this juncture that there are many

          4  plaintiff's attorneys that I've met that, in an

          5  outrageous manner, would want people to stay sick,

          6  et cetera, for as long as possible in order to try

          7  to increase the amount of potential damages that are

          8  compensable in a court of law. I have been familiar

          9  with Mr. Hubbard's detoxification program for nearly

         10  three decades.  More than two decades ago I

         11  published a paper in a law journal regarding its

         12  benefits for law enforcement officers exposed to

         13  toxic material in the course of rating and

         14  disassembling illegal drug labs.  In fact, Mr.

         15  Chairman, I have given to you and several of your

         16  members and to your Committee staff, a copy of this

         17  old article, which I might add is still as valid

         18  today as it was then.

         19                 The aim of the program here is

         20  simple, to alleviate the physical and mental effects

         21  of toxic exposures.  A variety of case studies and

         22  extensive clinical experience demonstrate that it

         23  can routinely accomplish this.

         24                 Let me depart briefly to say that I

         25  also was involved in the detoxification effort on
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          2  behalf of the firefighters in Shreveport, Louisiana

          3  years ago, and they were all sent to California, and

          4  every one of them came out with 90 percent

          5  improvement having sloshed around in liquid PCB's

          6  when transformers exploded and put liquid on the

          7  floor that no one knew about.  Of course, if you

          8  looked at the back of a door, there might be some

          9  skull and cross bones with a warning that perhaps

         10  you should be careful as to the liquid, but nobody

         11  bothered to tell them of the existence of PCB's or

         12  other volatile organic chemicals.  Every one of them

         13  came down with horrible symptoms that Dr. Root has

         14  described.  All of them have been assisted.

         15                 The irony is just one week ago, and I

         16  told Dr. Root this morning, I got a call from a

         17  lawyer named Robert Thompson in Shreveport, who said

         18  that his boy was here going to school during 9/11,

         19  and that he went down to Ground Zero and assisted

         20  for the longest period of time to try to help people

         21  get into buildings, and so forth.  He is now in

         22  Sherman Oaks, California on a T.V. series and has

         23  developed over the years a horrible respiratory

         24  problem.  He immediately thought of me.  He called

         25  me, and next week he's flying into Burbank,
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          2  California for the purpose of having his son and

          3  others come and talk to me about what I can do.  The

          4  irony is, I'm going to tell him to come to New York

          5  to participate in the detox program or to see Dr.

          6  Root at his facility up in Sacramento when he's on

          7  hiatus.

          8                 Also as I have noted, you have jumped

          9  onto the back of a wild bronco.  The mix of

         10  confusion, controversy and self preservation that

         11  forms the fabric of this public health disaster is

         12  itself rather toxic.  As a federal prosecutor, I

         13  have prosecuted both criminal and civil cases in

         14  connection with toxic numbers that sort of thing and

         15  promise you that these chemicals are of a scientific

         16  nature and do affect all of us.

         17                 I hope that you'll remember this and

         18  not lose sight of your humanitarian objective.  Just

         19  as we relied on the rescue workers at the time of

         20  the attacks, they are now relying on the public

         21  officials to do the right thing.  I can tell you

         22  that the detox effort works.  If you're faced with

         23  any kind of criticism by people, I would ask you to

         24  confront them and say, tell me whether it works or

         25  not.  Tell me if it doesn't work what evidence that
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          2  you have that it doesn't work.  When they're unable

          3  to provide you any data that it doesn't work, at

          4  that point hopefully you will ignore them.  And I

          5  would certainly invite Councilman Gennaro to

          6  actually go through the program, et cetera, because

          7  if he does have the time, I think he'll enjoy the

          8  benefits of it, as other Council Members have.

          9                 Before I close, I'd like to commend

         10  those on the Council who are taking a leadership

         11  role in this area.  It's vital to ensure health care

         12  choice for our rescue.  Thank you for the

         13  opportunity to provide testimony on this important

         14  matter, and I'm certain that if you all have any

         15  questions, the panel would be happy to answer them

         16  before you adjourn.  Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

         18  much, Mr. Amidon, for your testimony and for the

         19  testimony of all three of you.  We do have some

         20  questions.  Council Member Nelson and then Council

         21  Member Gennaro.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Just light

         23  stuff.  Were you Lieutenant Root once at Blytheville

         24  Air Force Base, by the way?

         25                 DR. ROOT:  At what base?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I served with

          3  a Lieutenant Root, that's why.  I was in the

          4  Airforce also.

          5                 DR. ROOT:  What base?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Blytheville

          7  Air Force Base.

          8                 DR. ROOT:  No.  Different.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  In Arkansas.

         10  We were very lucky then.  Have you worked with

         11  Chernobyl?  I see you have worked with Russia and

         12  Europe and Asia.

         13                 DR. ROOT:  Yes.  I've had two trips

         14  to Russia.  I helped set up a pilot project in

         15  Russia in which there were two groups of people

         16  exposed to the Chernobyl fall out who were treated.

         17  One group was a group of who were small children

         18  when the event happened in 1986, and they were

         19  exposed to the fall out, and they were treated in

         20  Russia as teenagers.  I don't remember the exact

         21  numbers, approximately 20 to 25, as I recall.

         22                 The main thrust of the study was to

         23  look at cesium 137, radioactive cesium, and there's

         24  a normal decay rate with cesium- 137, and what they

         25  found was with these children that when they started
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          2  the program the decay rate greatly accelerated, so

          3  they got rid of considerable amount more, but at the

          4  end of the study the impressive thing was not the

          5  reduction in cesium- 137, it was the improvement in

          6  these children in all of the symptoms that we see in

          7  all chemical exposures, be in the Gulf War, be it in

          8  the World Trade Center, be it whatever.  They had

          9  tremendous improvement.

         10                 The Russians did a 10- year follow up

         11  study, and this was reported on at the conference

         12  here in New York that was mentioned.  The thing that

         13  was so impressive there was that the improvement

         14  that these kids, now adults, had over the 10- year

         15  period was sustained, and what the Russians looked

         16  at was the amount of medical care that these people

         17  had to go through compared with those who did not go

         18  through the treatment program, and there was a huge

         19  difference in the amount of medical care.  Those

         20  that didn't get the program had a much greater need

         21  for it.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I appreciate

         23  it.  It's more like a side bar to our thrust today,

         24  but I have a lot of constituents who are from the

         25  former Soviet Union, and tomorrow they're having a
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          2  press conference, by the way, called Project

          3  Chernobyl at the UN Headquarters.  So I just wanted

          4  you to know about that.  I supposed they didn't

          5  invite you because they have their own core group,

          6  but maybe I'll discuss it with you after that.  Your

          7  expertise is invaluable overall.

          8                 The commander spoke to the issue of

          9  agent orange, so I imagine obviously you've done

         10  work along those lines too, so your pedigree, if you

         11  will, is in all toxins and toxic areas.

         12                 DR. ROOT:  Yes, I've treated a number

         13  of agent orange patients who came to my office in

         14  Sacramento, and even many years after the exposure

         15  we see tremendous improvement, just like we've done

         16  with some of the gentlemen you've heard today who

         17  were treated years after the exposure and yet still

         18  see a tremendous improvement, and I saw that with

         19  the agent orange exposed people as well.

         20                 I might add that I'm the principal

         21  investigator for a study that's just about, I hope

         22  to be funded in Florida to treat 25 Persian Gulf War

         23  veterans who were exposed and are still having

         24  problems and now, what are we, 16, 17 years

         25  downstream.  I've treated some of those some years
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          2  ago who were six or seven years from the exposure

          3  and had tremendous results with those people as

          4  well.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Well, thank

          6  you, doctor. I'm sorry we didn't serve together in

          7  Arkansas.

          8                 DR. ROOT:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

         10  much, Council Member Nelson.  Council Member

         11  Gennaro.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman. Doctor, like anyone else, I scan the

         14  papers, I don't really read the articles, but I've

         15  gleaned from some of those articles that there are

         16  physicians that make statements.  I don't know

         17  whether the statements are based on any knowledge

         18  because they certainly may not be familiar with what

         19  it is that you do at the detoxification project, but

         20  there have been physicians, at least in the media

         21  through these articles, that have indicated that

         22  there are potential dangers in the regimen.  I don't

         23  really recall what it is they said that the dangers

         24  were, but to the extent that you know, can you

         25  indicate what their concerns may be, or what they've
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          2  said, and then can you tell my why they're not

          3  correct?

          4                 DR. ROOT:  Sure.  I believe that in

          5  past testimony before this Committee we discussed

          6  the way that the treatment program works, but very

          7  basically it uses components which mobilize fat,

          8  break down the triglyceride molecule in the fat,

          9  releasing the fatty acids into the bloodstream.

         10  When that happens, the stored, what we call

         11  xenobiotics, the toxic materials that are stored in

         12  the fat cell, are also released into the

         13  bloodstream.

         14                 So the potential problem is that now

         15  you're releasing stuff into the blood stream and

         16  maybe it's going to make people sick.  Well, indeed

         17  for that very reason we do not treat pregnant ladies

         18  because it would be very toxic for the fetus, and we

         19  don't treat women who are breastfeeding because

         20  these materials come out in the breast milk.  But

         21  it's a very elegant program because the idea behind

         22  it is to mobilize this stuff, the toxic materials

         23  out of the fat cells, at the same rate that we can

         24  encourage excretion through the skin, through the GI

         25  track and through the kidneys, so if you mobilize
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          2  too rapidly, yes, there's a potential for people

          3  getting a little bit sicker, but the patients are

          4  monitored very closely by very highly trained

          5  technicians on the program, and we do not see any

          6  problems.  You could ask this gentleman to see if he

          7  had any problems.  We do see manifestations, but

          8  those are slight symptoms which come up, we think as

          9  a result of the release of some of these toxic

         10  chemicals, but they're transitory, lasting maybe 45

         11  minutes to an hour and then they go away.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  And more

         13  than methods by which you seek to pass this through

         14  the body by taking in a lot of fluids.

         15                 DR. ROOT:  Right.  The niacin

         16  mobilizes the fat storage, but it also causes an

         17  intense peripheral fazer dilatation, a fleshing,

         18  kind of an itchy --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  I was

         20  reading about niacin the other day.  Sometimes

         21  people take a lot of it and that could be dangerous,

         22  right?

         23                 DR. ROOT:  Yes and no.  There are two

         24  different types of niacin.  One is a crystalline

         25  form, which we use, which is non- toxic to the
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          2  liver.  The other form is a sustained release, long

          3  term release form, which can be hepatotoxic, toxic

          4  to the liver.  So we don't use that form, and we

          5  don't see any problems with increasing liver

          6  enzymes, and it's a non- issue, so I hope I've

          7  answered your question.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Sure.  Just

          9  one more if I can get like a free medical opinion.

         10  I'm going to turn 50 on May 30th. I'm just wondering

         11  how I look.  Do I look okay?

         12                 DR. ROOT:  You look great.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Okay, fine.

         14  Thank you. Now that's an expert medical opinion,

         15  now?

         16                 DR. ROOT:  Absolutely.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Okay, thank

         18  you.  Thank you, Doctor.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         20  Council Member Gennaro.  I want to thank this panel

         21  here for their time and testimony, as well, and,

         22  again, thank you for your service to our City.

         23  Thank you for your service to the country.  Doctor,

         24  thank you very much for your time.

         25                 That being our last panel, I want to
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          2  thank all who have testified here today, as well as

          3  my colleagues and staff who have put this Hearing

          4  together.  We will be voting out Reso. 738 at our

          5  next earliest convenience for this Committee in our

          6  hopes of this Committee doing what we can for our

          7  City workers who are feeling ill effects of the 9/11

          8  attacks.  Again, we hope this is a positive step

          9  forward as we work on the City level, as well as the

         10  federal and state levels, so again, we hope to take

         11  a positive step forward in the very, very future for

         12  the sake of those who are ill and their families.

         13  Thank you very much, everyone, once again, and have

         14  a great day.  Meeting adjourned.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 12:49 p.m.)
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